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FEDERAL MINISTER'S
MESSAGE

he dawn of the digital era has ushered in an epoch of transformation

for our wider communities in Pakistan. The Ministry of IT and
Telecom is fortunate to be a key enabler in the ambitious vision of
Digital Pakistan set out by Prime Minister Imran Khan, mandating digital
transformation as a tool to develop and sustain a knowledge-based
economy. In light of the coronavirus pandemic, we have been tirelessly
working to coordinate, complement and initiate measures to deal with
every aspect to keep people active and safe online.

"Telecom for all' has been the guiding principle of the Universal Service
Fund since its establishment. Ubiquitous connectivity is a decisive factor
in closing economic, social and territorial divides. The Ministry of IT and
Telecommunication supports USF in its mission to spread the benefits
of digitalization to unserved and underserved areas by increasing
accessibility and affordability of Information Communications
Technologies (ICTs) and their applications with beneficial influences for
citizens, firms and rural communities as a whole.

The Ministry of IT and Telecommunication continues to play a significant role in combating rural poverty and fostering
sustainable development through creating information-rich societies and supporting livelihoods. Moreover, | would like to
appreciate the efforts of the USF and the infrastructure provided through USF Programs. | hope that USF will keep on achieving
milestones in the future as well as progress and prosperity of Digital Pakistan.

Today, as we continue to bridge the digital divide and move forward to make Digital Pakistan Vision a reality, reaching our goal
of creating a vibrant, self-sustaining ICT sector and reaping all of the economic and social benefits that come with it seems
not only a more imminent reality, but almost an inevitable one, with continued efforts and investments on all fronts. With the
right policies in place and with the private and public sectors working in partnership for a common purpose, we will continue
to make progress towards the shared goal of bringing ICTs to every rural household of Pakistan resulting in a prosperous future
for all.

Syed Amin ul Haque
Federal Minister for IT § Telecommunication
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CHAIRMAN - USF BOARD
MESSAGE

n behalf of the Board of Directors of the Universal Service Fund
Company (USF), it is my honour and privilege to present our Annual
Report which covers financial results for the year ended June 30, 2020.

FY 2019-20 marks a significant milestone for the USF Company. We have
achieved remarkable progress in various programs and embarked upon
a new journey to facilitate Next Generation Optical Fiber Network and
Services program.

The COVID-19 pandemic has brought new visibility and profile to the
essential role of access and connectivity that USF plays in our society.
During difficult times, USF has empowered tens of millions of rural
people to stay connected to their friends and family, enabled students
to continue their education, helped businesses operate and proactively
supported the Government to deliver information to far-flung areas.

A core focus of our accessibility priority this year has been the Next
Generation - Broadband for Sustainable Development (NG-BSD)
Program. The Company successfully launched 12 new projects to provide High Speed Mobile Broadband to approximately 3.9
Million people in 1,227 muazas of Punjab, Sindh and Khyber Pakhtunkhwa provinces. Moreover, USF extended 3G/4G services in
Balochistan and Khyber Pakhtunkhwa provinces under Broadband for Sustainable Development Program.

Under Optic Fiber Cable Program, USF has effectively laid 1,442 km of Optic Fiber Cable and connected 36 Tehsil Headquarters
and Major Towns in Balochistan and Khyber Pakhtunkhwa provinces, providing backhaul connectivity support for 5C into the
Pakistan market. USF is also paving the way for tourism through the use of digital apps in these areas. On a broader scale, these
projects will ensure economic prosperity, social inclusiveness, and general networking between communities.

In addition, approximately 980 km of unserved and underserved road segments have been provided with Seamless Broadband
coverage under Next Generation Broadband for Sustainable Development National Highways and Motorways Program;
boosting the economy and laying the foundation for an intelligent transportation system. The Optical Fiber Network and
Services Program will help connect Union Councils of Pakistan which will increase the scope of e-commerce and online services
in remote areas of the country.

We acknowledge the guidance and support provided by the Minister for IT § Telecommunication in effectively fast tracking our
mandated work. We extend our appreciation to the Ministry of IT and Telecommunication for supporting USF in its endeavors
and the members of the Board for their relentless efforts to bridge the digital divide. We also want to thank the entire USF team,
for their dedication, expertise and professionalism. The role of telecos in achieving desired goals is remarkable.

USF believes that the opportunities and promise of a better digital future should be accessible to all and is committed to
empower people digitally.

SHOAIB AHMAD SIDDIQUI

Chairman of USF Board,
Federal Secretary for Ministry of IT and Telecommunication
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CEO’'S MESSAGE

he financial year 2019-20 marked our 14th year of operation as

we continued to bridge the digital divide in the unprecedented
times of the coronavirus outbreak. | believe this year's annual report
demonstrates the contribution that USF makes to improving information
and communication technologies (ICTs) infrastructure in Pakistan.

Inline with the Digital Pakistan vision initiated in 2018, USF has witnessed
significant progress and changes to further meeting the aspirations of
the Ministry of IT and Telecommunication, through the expansion and
promotion of ICT infrastructure for introducing new and sophisticated
services to meet the needs of rural beneficiaries.

Broadband internet access is rapidly becoming one of the top essential
services for the world’'s population just like other basic utilities for
survival. USF's work in ensuring that no one gets left behind during
this huge transformation, which offers great value across Pakistan.
Our achievements would not be meaningful if we did not achieve
them responsibly. We continue to focus on improving the way we do
business responsibly, in our operations, in our supply chain, and with our stakeholders. This report is a stepping stone in further
integrating our responsible business practices into our strategies and the value we bring to society.

USF's achievements are many, but best demonstrated by the outcomes for rural communities outlined in the pages ahead.
Through USF's work, the rural and remote population are benefitting from education and healthcare, increased opportunities
for women's empowerment and environmental sustainability, and contributing to enhanced government transparency and
accountability.

This year, USF has launched a digital highway known as Next Generation Optical Fiber Network § Services Program. In the first
round of survey activity, USF has identified 507 unserved Union Councils. This includes connecting educational and health
institutes, government offices and financial institutions in far flung areas. The program will open avenues for access to digital
apps and will ensure their maximum utilization. Moreover, optic fiber will help Pakistan in preparing for 5G.

| take this opportunity to express my sincere gratitude to the Federal Minister of IT and Telecommunication and the members
of the Board for their unrelenting dedication, support and encouragement to Universal Service Fund. | would also like to thank
our employees and our partners for their continued commitment and hard work.

In FY2020-21, we will continue to work towards realizing our Digital Pakistan vision by empowering the unserved and
underserved communities of Pakistan. We stand committed alongside our teams and network of partners to redress the power
dynamics, and build a more equitable world where no one is left behind in the digital age.

\

|
\ \d\"}"
N/
Haaris Mahmood Chaudhary

Chief Execﬁtive Officer
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Universal Service Fund, an establishment of the Ministry of Information Technology (IT) § Telecommunication (MolTT) is
spreading the benefits of Information and Communication Technologies (ICTs) to all corners of Pakistan. USF strives to provide
IT and Telecommunication services in un-served or under-served areas of Pakistan to bridge the digital divide in line with the
vision of Digital Pakistan. The Company has been established under section 42 of Companies Ordinance 1984 with Board of
Directors comprised of representatives of both, the private and public sector.

USF Co. Board of

Public ) Private
Directors
Federal Secretary Nominee Cellular SPs
MoITT
Member Telecom Nominee Fixed-Line
MolITT SPs
Chairman - PTA Nominee ISPs
Nominee Consumer
CEO - NITB CEO USF
Groups

Since its establishment, USF has designed different programs to fill the communication gaps in the existing telecommunication
infrastructure and coverage locations. The USF provides subsidies to licensed telecom operators — typically through competitive
bidding processes — to make the needed investments and to operate services for the un-served or under-served areas in
Pakistan. Under these programs, each project specifies clear and measurable objectives, including coverage and service delivery
targets. These projects are helping to accelerate the virtuous cycle of telecommunication infrastructure expansion.

Objectives of Universal Service Fund

N
W

() (Y rat
e =

i 6 o

To bring the focus of
telecom operators
towards rural population
and increase the level
of telecom penetration
significantly in the rural
areas through effective
and fair utilization of the
fund

To improve the
Broadband
penetration in the
country

To bring significant
advances towards
enhancement of
e-services, both in rural
as well as urban areas of
the country

—
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Next Generation Broadband for Sustainable Development (NG- BSD) Program

Through the Next Generation Broadband for Sustainable
Development Program, USF Co is providing voice
telephony and High Speed Mobile Broadband (at
the minimum rate of 512 kbps) to the unserved and
underserved Mauzas across Pakistan. These projects
have a notable role in the socio-economic progress of
the people at a grassroots level and have opened the
doors of opportunities for people.

Expected time
frame: 12-18
months

In FY 2019-20, USF awarded 12 new projects to different
telecom operators. The projects target provision of
High Speed Mobile Broadband and voice telephony
services to 13.2 Million population in 5,723 un-served
and under-served mauzas in the following districts:
Matiari, Tando Allahyar, Hyderabad, Tando Muhammad
Khan, Badin, Sujawal, Bahawalpur, Rahim Yar Khan,
Bahawalnagar, Tharparkar, Mirpurkhas, DG Khan, Layyah,
Umerkot, Sangarh, Kurram, Muzaffargarh and Rajanpur.
USF also achieved various milestones in Dadu, Thatta
and Jamshoro. Moreover, significant progress was
made in the already running project of Dadu Lot that
- encompasses Dadu, Jamshoro and Thatta districts. Figure 1: Features of Next Generation Broadband for Sustainable
Development (NG- BSD) Program

Renewable energy used
as prime source for USF
deployments

. . . Target Unserved Mauzas
Project (Lot) Target Districts
Unserved Mauzas Covered

Dadu Dadu, Jamshoro § Thatta 481 227 50% completed

Matiari, Tando Allahyar, Hyder-
Hyderabad abad, Tando Muhammad Khan, 964 497 50% completed
Badin § Sujawal

Bahawalpur Bahawalpur 842 383 75% completed
Tharparkar Tharparkar § Mirpurkhas 462 120 25% completed

. Ot Target
Project (Lot) Target Districts
Unserved Mauzas

Rahim Yar Khan Rahim Yar Khan 741
Bahawalnagar Bahawalnagar 505
DG Khan DG Khan § Layyah 819
Sanghar Umerkot § Sangarh 500
Kurram Kurram 224
Muzaffargarh Muzaffargarh § Rajanpur 666
Small Lot S-3 Malir 26
Small Lot I-1 Islamabad (rural) 12

Small Lot P4 Bhakkar, Mianwali, Jhang § Khushab 11

ACHIEVEMENT: A total of 1,227 mauzas with a population of about 3.9 million provided coverage.
All projects launched in FY 19-20 are expected to be completed within 12-18 months.
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Broadband for Sustainable Development (BSD) Program

The Program focuses on providing basic voice and data
services in unserved or under-served areas. However,
in post 3G/4G environment, this program has been
redesigned to include Broadband equivalent services as a

mandatory component of each new project.
60% coverage to

. . mandatory
During the FY 2019-20, a total of 688 mauzas with population
an unserved population of approximately 0.6 Million 60% Voice capacity of
are reaping benefits from Broadband access. The USF 4 mandatory population
successfully completed the Khyber Lot project. People ‘(

residing in Peshawar, Khyber Agency, Karak, Hangu § Kohat
are now reaping benefits of Hi-Speed Broadband in 194 Expected Time

) Frame: 24
unserved muazas. This has enabled students to change S——
their lives through better access to educational facilities.

In addition, USF is also providing Broadband coverage

in Kohistan Lot that encompasses Kohistan, Battagram, (2]
Mansehra, Torghar, Haripur and Abbottabad districts. The -’8
community can now share the breathtaking scenery with 9 '5

the rest of the world. This will boost tourism and further ',;J'e

create employment in the region. (2]

0.6 % of data rate of 256 KBPS Renewable energy used as
prime source for USF
deployments

Figure 2. : Features of Broadband for Sustainable
Development (BSD) Program

. . . Target Unserved Mauzas
Project (Lot) | Target Districts
Unserved Mauzas | Covered

Kohistan, Battagram, Mansehra, Torghar,
Haripur and Abbottabad

Kohistan 1283 235 75% completed

Khyber Agency, Kohat, Karak, Hangu, FR

Khyber
y Peshawar and FR Kohat

503 194 Completed

. Ot Target
Project (Lot) arget Districts
Unserved Mauzas

Dera Bughti / Kohlu Dera Bugti Kohlu 396
Mohmand Bajaur, Mohmand and Malakand 684
North Waziristan North Waziristan, FR Lakki Marwat, FR Bannu 401
South Waziristan S. Waziristan Agency § FR Tank 411

ACHIEVEMENT: A total of 429 mauzas with a population of about 0.6 million provided coverage.
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Next Generation — Broadband for Sustainable Development

Program for National Highways § Motorways
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Expected Time Frame:
USF aims to provide voice and High Speed Broadband data 18 months

services to commuters on unserved patches of National
Highways and Motorways in Pakistan. The program is first
of its kind as it targets the commuters. Another unique Data rate of 512 KBPS
feature is National Roaming whereby a commuter will get clotmTiIREe) 1R ol
continuous services in USF served areas, irrespective of their
subscribed networks.

100% coverage to road
In the FY 2019-20, USF is providing High-Speed Mobile N segments
Broadband service on unserved road segments of NH10
(Hub to Jiwani — Makran Coastal Highway), NH25 (Uthal-
Quetta), NH65 (Quetta to Dera Allah Yar), NH50 (Kuchlak to
Sherani) and NH70 (Qilla Saifullah to Rakhni). Approximately
981 km of unserved and underserved road segments have
been provided with NG-BSD coverage. USF is committed to
timely delivery of its projects in all respects.

Renewable energy used as
prime source for USF
deployments

National Roaming service
enabled

Figure 3.: Features of Next Generation — Broadband for Sustainable
Development Program for National Highways § Motorways

Target Unserved Route Length
Target Routes
Road segment (Km) covered (Km)

Lot-1 NH10 - NH25 694 640.2 75% completed
Lot-2 NH25 - NH65 650 189.8 25% completed
Lot-3 NH50 - NH70 451 150 25% completed

ACHIEVEMENT: A total of approximately 980 km of un/underserved road segments provided seamless coverage.

1
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Optic Fiber Cable (OFC) Program
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OFC KPK Package- Completed - PTCL G
KPK-EX -FATA Package - 1- Inprogress - PTGL pj;
OFC KPK (PREV. FATA) Package- 2 - Advertised

Legend
. USF Modes
USF Advertised Nodes
Non USF - Serving Modes
USF OFC
= Advenised
— INprogress
————s Lo

D PAK Province Boundary

"ARABIAN SEA

) Optical Nodes in each
Target - Connecting unconnected Tehsil/Town supporting:

Tehsil Headquarters and Towns
enroute with
National

Internet/Data

USF is providing Optical Fiber Connectivity to unserved Backbone
Tehsil Headquarters and Major Towns. Optical Fiber
Connectivity provides cost-effective, reliable and
scalable backhaul medium over which Voice and

Data (Internet) traffic are carried from one location to Optical Fiber Cable
h with 24 Fibers between
another. Tehsils/Towns

I BO 160 320 480

STM 4 (622Mbps) to STM
64 (10Cbps) interfaces for
Telecom and corporate

1

E1, FE/GE, STM1 interfaces
During this year, USF has laid a total of 1,442 km of Optic for small Ofice to

Medium Offices
Fiber Cable and connected 36 Tehsil Headquarters
and Major Towns in Balochistan, Ex-FATA and Khyber
Pakhtunkwa provinces.

Figure 4.: Characterstics of Optic Fiber Cable (OFC) Program

Target
Unserved THQs/

Target Districts )
Towns § Estimated

Targets Achieved

OFC length

Balochistan Package-2  Awaran, Lasbela, Kech, Gawadar 17 THQs /Towns § 7 THQs § Towns § Completed
1,396 Km 277.6 Km

Balochistan Punjab Kalat, Kharan, Washuk, Panjgur, Khuzdar, 17 THQs/ Towns § 3 THQs § Towns § Completed

Package-3 Kech, Bahawalnagar, Layyah, Khushab 1,361 Km 399.8 Km

Khyber Pakhtunkhwa Lower Dir, Chitral, Shangla, DI Khan, 35 THQs /Towns § 20 THQs § Towns  Completed

Package Battagram, Malakand, Mansehra, Swat 619 Km § 459.9 Km

FATA Package-1 FR Bannu, FR Lakki Marwat, FR Tank, North 24 THQs /Towns § 6 THQs § Towns § Completed

Wagziristan, South Waziristan 653 Km 285 Km

ACHIEVEMENT: A total of 1,442 km of OFC Laid and 36 Tehsil Headquarters and Major Towns connected.
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Next Generation Optical Fiber Network and Services Program

USF has been a driving force towards a perfect
Pakistan that is connected to the world and the
future projects are further pushing the boundaries.
USF has launched a digital highway known as
Next Generation Optical Fiber Network § Services
Program. Optic Fiber connectivity is essential
for bridging the digital divide in Pakistan and is
considered integral across the globe for paving the
way to provide ICT services. This project will open the
avenues for access to digital apps and will guarantee
their maximum utilization. Moreover, optic fiber will
also help Pakistan in preparing for 5C.

Educational institutes, health institutes, government
offices and banks in far-flung areas of Pakistan will
substantially benefit from the NG-OFC Network and
Services Program. In line with Prime Minister Imran
Khan's vision of Digital Pakistan and USF's goal of
deep fiberization, USF has successfully launched
and completed the first round of survey activity in
629 Union Councils resulting in the identification of
507 unserved Union Councils.

Enhanced Network and
Services targeting high
speed access, backhaul
connectivity to telecom
companies, public and
private organizations and
individual users

Target - Connecting
unconnected Union
Councils (UC) and small
towns across the country

Optical Fiber Cable with
48 Fibers between
Tehsils/Towns with

provision for dark fiber

&

S 4

0%
Optical Nodes in each O
UC/Town supporting:

1Gpbs, 10Gbps and STM1/4
Interfaces for high capacity and
demanding users such as Telecom
§ corporate.

Passive Optical Network Nodes for
Fiber to the Home/Office facility to
end users.

10Gbps Backhaul between Nodes.

Figure 5.: Features of Next Generation Optical Fiber
Network and Services Program

Mext Generation Optical Fiber Metwork & Services

FY19-20
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DIGITAL PAKISTAN

E-governance Sectoral digitization

T @ ICT ranking of Pakistan Holistic digital strategy @
Lf/\\j
. ) \ / E-commerce
Increase foreign an b

% direct R
T investment

Youth, women and

girls empowerment
using ICT

Persons with

disabilities
&

= PAI(ISTAN 0]

L 4 . .
Increase software Promote innovation,
exports, IT entrepreneurship,

remittances and incubators and
domestic market = start-ups
Ell
. ......

Standardisation Digital inclusion: Bridge the digital divide including
the urban and rural divide, gender disparity,
-_— unserved and underserved areas, and inequality
for persons with disabilities (PWDs), by connecting
the unconnected with broadband.

OBJECTIVES OF DIGITAL PAKISTAN POLICY

The Digital Pakistan policy aims to use ICT as a strategic enabler for sectoral transformation,
economic growth and a better quality of life for citizens.

Access and Connectivity - a fundamental right of every Pakistani

Digital transformation can only be fully realized if high-quality access to communication networks and services is made available
at affordable prices for all people and firms no matter who they are or where they live. Bringing the unconnected online and
closing the digital divide are of crucial importance to any effort to build a more equitable Pakistan. Therefore, USF is taking
concrete steps to improve access to high speed mobile connectivity in unserved and underserved areas of Pakistan, thereby
moderating structural vulnerabilities in the economy and stimulating growth. Digital connectivity is opening unprecedented
new possibilities for the marginalized communities; enhancing their ability to work and transact online and engage in the
digital economy.

FIVE PRIORITY AREAS FOR DIGITAL PAKISTAN

Well planned communication and monitored development

Digital Skilling § Innovation §

Access § Digital

eGovernment

Training Entrepreneurship

Connectivity Infrastructure

Transition to
knowledge economy
by augmenting our
existing talent and
preparing the future

generation. Move
up the value chain
by rapidly imparting

Build a “Pakistan
Stack” that allows
government,
business § startups
to utilize a digital
infrastructure to
solve Pakistan's
problem towards

Treat access to
internet and the

knowledge that
comes with it as a
fundamental right
for all Pakistanis

Digitize intra-
government
processes to move
towards a paperless
environment. Digitize
Pakistani citizen §
business interaction
with government

Make it easy for
investors to come
in and for startups

to operate and

grow fueling our
economy'’s growth

and making us a

force to be reckoned

N e e e e e e e e e e oo

presence-less, services specialist/emerging with on the global
paperless § cashless tech skills playing field
service delivery
N e e e e e e e oo N e e e e N e e e e e e oo N e e e e e N e e e e o 7/
Cyber Security
Policy/Legal
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Hassan works as an Assistant Manager with USF and his
job requires traveling to remote rural areas, which are faced
with precarious security conditions. Some of the rural areas
in Balochistan are riven with conflict, a situation which is
aggravated with overlapping layers of ethnic fissures, sectarian
clefts, and institutional fractures. Further, with the escalating
militancy, it poses newer challenges and intensified risks for
humanitarian and aid workers.

On his recent visit to Turbat and Mirani in mid-July, Hassan
was faced with a life-threatening situation during a network
service verification visit. Turbat is an economically marginalized
area in Balochistan, with poor civic amenities and living
conditions. The inclement weather conditions further add to
the problems especially for those who are traveling. He left
for Turbat from Quetta alongside the Frontier Corps (FC) staff
for the site visit. Hassan, along with the team members spent
the night at the FC Headquarter, which is situated in Panjgur.
On the following day, when Hassan and the team arrived at
Turbat, it was concluded that the visit to Mirani will take place
in the early hours of the day. Later, he was instructed by a Law
Enforcement Agency personnel to change his timings for the
visit of Mirani. Hassan did not understand the reasoning at
that time but obeyed the orders. He found out a few hours
later about the explosion.
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- Designation;. -
Assistant Manager
Department: &
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As indicated by the Law Enforcement Agencies, it was an
improvised explosive device (IED) fitted on a motorcycle. In
light of the blast, a specialist mechanic shop that was close
to the spot was severely wrecked by the fire and killed one
individual while six others were brutally injured. Hassan feels
how closely he brushed off death and was it not for changing
the route, he too could have met the same fate. He said, “l am
so grateful to be alive. | keep thinking of how it could have
been me. | am truly lucky to have escaped this situation.”

Recognizing his bravery and resolve to continue his work
despite unfavorable environs, Hassan Domer was presented
with a Spot Recognition Award 2019. While accepting the award,
Hassan shared, “The work of every individual is important
towards achieving the broader goal, and we must continue in
our resolve to deliver in the harshest of circumstances. | am
grateful for this recognition and will strive to work even harder
in the future.”



ACHIEVED

MILESTONES

USF AWARDS CONTRACTS TO TELENOR PAKISTAN FOR PROVIDING
BROADBAND COVERAGE ON NATIONAL HIGHWAYS § MOTORWAYS
IN BALOCHISTAN § SERVICES IN DADU § HYDERABAD

2019-07-23 .

JAZZ AND USF TO EXPAND INTERNET ACCESS IN
SOUTH WAZIRISTAN

2019-09-12




? AW RDS/!ONTRACT TO JAZZ FOR PROVIDING
HI-SPEED BROADBAND IN KURRAM

2020-04-20
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USF AWARDS CONTRACT TO JAZZ FOR PROVIDING
HI-SPEED BROADBAND IN KURRAM
2020-04-20
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Specific statements to comply with the requirements of the Code of Corporate Governance are as follows:

1. This report is also being submitted to the contributors of Universal Service Fund.
2. USF Co Board makes the following statements, prepared under section S227 of the Companies Act, 2017:

a. The Board has complied with the relevant principles of corporate governance and has identified the rules that have
not been complied with, the period in which such non-compliance continued, and reasons for such noncompliance
(Statement of Compliance).

b.  The financial statements, prepared by the management of USF, present fairly its state of affairs, the result of its
operations, cash flows and changes in equity.

c. Proper books of account of the USF have been maintained.

d. Appropriate accounting policies have been consistently applied in preparation of financial statements and
accounting estimates are based on reasonable and prudent judgment.

e. They recognize their responsibility to establish and maintain sound system of internal control, which is regularly
reviewed and monitored,;

f.  The appointment of Chairman and other members of the Board and the terms of their appointment along with the
remuneration policy adopted are in the best interests of the public sector company as well as in line with the
best practices.

3. Given below is the remuneration to the CEO and Directors of USF Board:

Remuneration to CEO (Rs.)

FY 2014-15 FY 2015-16 FY 2016-17 FY 2017-18 FY 2018-19 FY 2019-20

Managerial

. 7,668,750 8,869,872 3,831,787 5,985,938 11,017,500 1,599,315
Remuneration
Allowance 7148,583 8,170,723 4,043,325 4,293,562 9,412,433 5,536,426
Total 14,817,333 17,040,595 7,875112 10,279,500 20,429,933 7,135,741

“The USF Co Board in its 65th Board of Director's Meeting held on 25th July, 2019 resolved and approved to revise the
remuneration of the Director’s for attending Board and Committee Meetings as follows:

«  Rs. 50,000 for attending Board Meetings
+  Rs.20,000 for attending Committee Meetings”

Chairperson USF Board
Shoaib Ahmad Siddiqui 400,000/~
CEO NITB
Shabahat Ali Shah 540,000/~

Member Telecom

Chairman PTA
Major Gen. (R) Amir Azeem Bajwa 600,000/~
Nominee Fixed Line Licensees

Rashid Khan No remuneration taken
Nominee Mobile Cellular Licensees

Irfan Wahab Khan No remuneration taken

Nominee of Data Licensees

Imran Akhtar Shah 640,000/~
Representative of Consumer Groups

Kaukab Igbal 540,000/~
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4. Details regarding clause no. 4 of Rule no. 17 are given below:

a. Subsidy or other Financial support from Government
E Financial Support From Government
=
= 519,300,000
T
B 400,000, 0603
® T8, 500, i
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FY 3015-2016 FY 3016-2017 FY 2017-2018 FY 2018-2019 FY 3019-2020
Year
b. Deviations from last year in operating results

1 Till the end of FY 2018-19 Till the end of FY 2019-20

Number of Mauzas provided 3G/4G

and voice telephony 7,703 9618
3G/4G provided to unserved

segments on National Highways § In Progress 981
Motorways

No. of Tehsil H rters § Major

To(::v:s Ceo:necte::qua rers & el 105 138
Length of Optic Fiber Cable 7199 km 8,344 km
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\ .

;
30 ) ANNUAL REPORT 2019-20



ARDIFEOE A4

BfOL-E0L A4 AEOE-FER A4 Fodi0f Al LEOE-T00E A4 FIGERA0L Ad
LLthetil]
oerEe Tl
EFESTLLT Lugs il
Lo
TR

[54) ssead g ¥5eq jo
s19afoud 10 JOUPNY [EIUYIDL 0} PISINGSI] 904 jo Aewwng

OTOTGIOL A4 GIOZRIOT A4 FUOTLTOR A LEOT9TOT AN TRESTOC A SIOERIOT A

L
[t g g

DIETERF

[ gt ]
O LTEET

SEEENIT

L3180 ]

(54) saeah ag 15e] JO
aunypuadxy (ended jo Aewwng

"

¥ 8RR B R 3

-
=

(suonme]

(o)

(sy) ainypuadx3 |eyde)

(sy) pasingsig 04

DPeT-GLOT Ad EDOT-NNDE Ld

|
|
|
WITHLEE F
TRy
g Ty
TECHTHETT

(su) s1eak 90 158 JO
pasingsg s1aafosd sop Juesn Apsqng Jo Asewwng

WLOT-£107 Ad LROZ9T0E A WIOE-E1 A RNOE-FIAT AN

_ LTETYET

L tiydin

RS A

AO-FIOL A WAL A LEaC-950T Ad

_ _ [o e it
T

TIWETEHL

PIOTN0RE Ad S FIA0 A6

i

R aiiai s

(s4) sieak 90 358] JO
sasuadx] [euoneiadp jo Aeuwnung

(‘sy) saeah 90 3se) jo ejep jenpueuly pue Sunyesddo jo Atewwuns

fsuom) =

g8 °

wond 3 § B 5 B B B

(sy) Juess) Apisqng

(sd) sasuadx3 jeuonesadp

31

7
) ANNUAL REPORT 2019-20



c. Summary of Operating and Financial data of last 6 years (Rs.)

- FY 2014-2015 | FY 2015-2016 | FY 2016-2017 | FY 2017-2018 | FY 2018-2019 | FY 2019-2020

Government
Grants

Operational
Expenses
Capital
Expenditure
Subsidy Grant
for projects
Disbursed

Fee
disbursed
to Technical
Auditor for
projects

225,477,354

21,494,396

2,514175177

17,055,038

7,849,300,000 8,433,000,000 9,619,000,000 6,949,000,000 4,890,000,000

243,431,865

1,060,250

5127,575,224

12,044,639

259,602,260

4,031,310

11,556,139,702

17,735,943

315,862,068

19,827,996

6,786,484,959

13,622,192

338,523,611 402,651,485
40,160,764 18,085,490
6,205,120,282 5,472,282,626
34,451,262 24,268,108

Balance Sheet —Assets (Rs.)

Non-
Current

Current

46,047,278

1,374153,011

31,060,575

3,554,104,975

19,649,615

1,597119,223

26,424,249

4,242,846,902

50,300,160 50,565,430

5.402.246,041 6,005,488,099

Balance Sheet-Liabilities (Rs.)

Non-
Current

Current

46,047,278

1,374153,011

2,757,001,335

828,164,215

1,285,838,225

330,930,613

3,864,377,459

404,893,692

5,066,738,786 5,802,323,620

385,807,415 253,729,909

Commitment

9,238,422,139

15,567,399,720

18,344,340,720

16,646,129,371

10,353,011,981  10,277,296,359

B- Related Party Transactions (Rs.)

MoITT - GOP

Subsidy
Payment
PTCL
Subsidy
Payment
PMCL-Jazz
Subsidy
Payment CM
Pak

Subsidy

Payment Ufone

Subsidy
Payment
Telenor
Employees
Gratuity Fund
Account

32

2,254,111,631

15,653,614

2,120,697,056

303,638,412

996,437,001

4,809,761

278,394,500

28,000,000

5,386,242,306

8,824,997

300,000,000

(28,000,000)

4,277,294,810

9,597,938

7,849,300,000 8,433,000,000 9,619,000,000 6,949,000,000 4,890,000,000

377,427,300 599,894,680
45101,418

3,176,159,452 1,322,100,387

3,063,415,965

17,677,638 12,512,106

;
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d. Key Performance indicators:

All the initiatives of USF Co along with its innovative and futuristic approach have enabled the citizens of Pakistan to
reap maximum benefits from the Information and Communication Technologies (ICT). USF programs have played a huge
role in the socio-economic uplift of the underprivileged areas of Pakistan and led to better educational facilities, gender
empowerment and bridging the digital divide.

Till the end of FY 2019-20:
9,618 un-served mauzas have been provided 3G/4G and voice telephony services.
981 km of un-served segments on National Highways § Motorways provided with 3G/4G data services.
Next Generation Optical Fiber Network § Services Program has been initiated.

More than 8,344 km of Optic Fiber Cable has been laid which is providing connectivity to 138 Tehsil
Headquarters and Towns.

e. No Statutory payment on account of taxes, duties, levies and charges is overdue or outstanding.

f. Future Plans:

Looking ahead to FY 2020-21, USF commits to continued success for each of the USF programs.

USF will measure success by its ability to deliver the Universal Service Fund efficiently and its ability to help bridge
the digital divide for the millions of Pakistanis touched by Universal Service Fund initiatives. Our efforts include
broadening the Next Generation Broadband for Sustainable Development Program, expanding Optic Fiber

Cable Program and launching the Next Generation Optical Fiber Networks and Services Program.

USF is determined to achieve the following targets:

i Next Generation — Broadband for Sustainable Development Program

With the future plan set in motion, USF will be providing High Speed Mobile Broadband access to 11 Million people in
4,025 unserved and underserved muazas in Balochistan, Punjab, Sindh and Khyber Pakhtunkhwa provinces.

Gwadar, Kech//Turbat, Panjgur, Ziarat, Mastung, Chaghai, Noshki, Pishin, Quetta

Balochistan and Killa Abdulah
. Okara, Sahiwal, Pakpattan, Multan, Khanewal, Chakwal, Jhelum, Attock and
Punjab S
Rawalpindi
. Larkana, Kambar Shahdadkot, Naushahro Feroze, Shaheed Benazirabad, Shikarpur,
Sindh
Jacobabad and Kashmore
Khyber Pakhtunkhwa Chitral, Upper Dir, Lower Dir, Charsadda, Mardan, Nowshera, Swabi, Swat, Bannu

and Lakki Marwat

ii Optic Fiber Cable Program

USF intends to connect 40 unserved Tehsil Headquarters and Major Towns by laying an estimated 837 km of Optic Fiber
Cable in districts of Bajaur, Mohmand, Khyber, Orakzai, Kurram, FR Kohat and FR Peshawar.

iii Next Generation Optical Fiber Network § Services Program

USF will be expanding Optic Fiber Cable connectivity to unserved Union Councils’ level. Country wide surveys are being
conducted and soon, USF will launch tenders for 7 new projects targeting 507 Union Councils and an estimated 3,815
km of Optic Fiber Cable in the districts of Ghotki, Kashmore, Sukkur, Khairpur, Naushahro Feroze, Shaheed Benazirabad,
Khairpur, Rajanpur, Muzaffargarh, DG Khan, Layyah § DG Khan.

Cumulative Targets till the end of FY 2020-21

S. No. Program Targets

1 Total No. of Muazas to be provided with 3G/4G and voice telephony 14,559

2 Length of Optic Fiber Cable to be laid 8,726 km

3 No. of Tehsil Headquarters and Major Towns to be connected 153
3G/4G provided to unserved segments on National Highways § Motorways 1,863 km

4 No. of projects to be launched under Next Generation Optical Fiber Network § Services program 07

7
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The value of investments of provident, gratuity and pension funds based on their respective audit accounts is

as follow:

USF Company is not maintaining any pension and provident fund. Employees Gratuity is maintained separately by

Trustees. However, no investment is made for gratuity in FY 2019-20.

Following are the details of number of Board of Directors meetings held during the year and attendance by

each Director:

During the FY 2019-20, eight (08) Board of Directors meetings were held. These meetings were chaired by Secretary
IT § Telecommunication, Mr. Shoaib Ahmad Siddiqui. The Meetings were held on the following dates:

65% Board Meeting: 25-07-2019
66" Board Meeting: 06-09-2019
67 Board Meeting: 25-10-2019
68" Board Meeting: 22-01-2020

69" Board Meeting: 13-02-2020
70% Board Meeting: 24-04-2020
71t Board Meeting: 20-05-2020
72" Board Meeting: 29-06-2020

Board Member Total Number of Meetings Meetings Attended
8 8

Chairperson

CEO NITB

Member Telecom
Chairman PTA

Nominee Fixed Line Licensees

Nominee Data Licensees

Nominee Mobile Cellular Licensees

Nominee Consumer Group
CEO USF Co.

(oe]

® O O @ o o™

(0e]

o ® N O N

Universal Service Fundisincorporated underthesection 42 of the Companies Ordinance, 1984 (XLVIl of 1984) and

it's a company limited by Guarantee.

USF Company Boar

§ Sub-Committees

Board of
Directors
—

Human Resource
Governance
Committee

4
Chief Internal
Auditor

Company
Secretary

Procurement
Committee

Projects Appraisal
Committee
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[ USF Project Lite Cycle

. Project planning § BoD approval
«  Tender process
Contract Signing

«  Closure monitoring visit
. Closure of Contract

Kick off with Operator
Milestones achievement
Hiring of Technical Auditors
«  Technical Audit acceptance

. NOC Visits
. Post Processing
. OPEX Disbursement

. 2 monitoring visits per year

«  Hiring of Monitoring Auditors
. Resolution of complaints

. Impact Assessment

[ Project Challenges

J{{
( e 1L ) ) ]

Challenges W ( ; W i ( W ( W ( ]
g Right of way Highly £ ® Difficult S

brought by P latile field @ xtreme ecurity
quisition volatile fie -
‘ COVID-19 Y Tonelitons Weather Terrain ‘ Challenges
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I am so happy that | can finally
watch boxing videos on
Youtube. Boxing is my passion.
cannot wait to
finish school one day
and pursue my career in boxing.
I am confident that | will
win the championship!

13 years old, Gul Rukh,
Haripur, Khyber Pakhtunkhwa

Being a driver,
| travel long distances and
therefore,| am never home.
When my family needs money,
| transfer it through Easy Paisa.
It is very convenient to send
and receive money,
Just takes a minute,literally.
I am thankful to the
Government of Pakistan
for brining ease into our lives.

40 years old, Maalik,
Lasbela, Balochistan

| was able to attend
my online classes
and access the course materials
without facing any problems with
the internet connectivity.
| hope that the pandemic ends
soon so | can return to
iy URiversity,

21 years old, Imran,
Bahawalnagar, Punjab

7
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Internet connectivity is a blessing
in my life. | run a grocery store
in my neighborhood and being

the only son of my aged parents,
| found it very difficult to leave

them alone at home while
| traveled to the city to
purchase stock,
But now, | just place an order
online, it saves me fime and money.

18 years old, Ameen Ullah Khan,
Tando Allahyar, Sindh

| have been teaching for
over 06 years and | love my job.
| believe that Broadband connectivity
has a profound effect on the
new generation, unlike on any previous one.
Children nowadays are self-directed |earners,
instead of waiting for a tutor or someone

to help them,they are very proactive in seeking

help for themselves through
the internet.

32 years old, Raheela Bib
Lower Dir, Khyber Pakhtunkhwa

I am a housewife, and through
my smartphone,
I am daoing a business of selling
desi ghee, butter and eggs.
People from the locality place their orders,
and | deliver them at reasonable rates.
It makes me feel so empowered that
| am making my own money.
Words truly cannot express my happiness.

26 years old, Rakshanda,
Karak, Khyber Pakhtunkhwa

| -am a rice farm owner.
| am very grateful to the
Government of Pakistan
because the mobile
phone connectivity has
almost doubled my income.
| have been directly selling
the rice to consumers at
good prices without involving
any third party.
48 years old, Allah Baksh,
Dadu, Sindh

My husband suffered a stroke
last year, Due lo
Broadband access, | was able to
share his medical reports
and seek
the best advice from doctors
all around the globe.

By the grace of Allah,
he is healthy now.

38 years old, Robina,
Layyah, Punjab

It is a dream come true,
1 am grateful to the
Government of Pakistan for bringing
internet connectivity to our homes.
| have nol seen my son in years
ever since he moved to Qatar.
MNow, he is a video call away.
Technology has become a part of
my daily life now.

60 years old, Achakzai,
Washuk, Balochistan
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Looking ahead to FY 2020-21, USF commits to continued success for each of the USF programs. Our efforts include broadening the
Next Generation Broadband for Sustainable Development Program, expanding the Optic Fiber Cable Program and launching the
Next Generation Optical Fiber Networks and Services Program.

@ Wwith the future plan set in motion for Next Generation — Broadband for Sustainable Development Program, USF will
be providing Hi-speed Mobile Broadband access to 11 Million people in 4,025 unserved and underserved muazas in
Balochistan, Punjab, Sindh and Khyber Pakhtunkhwa provinces.

Province Districts

Balochistan Gwadar, Kech//Turbat, Panjgur, Ziarat, Mastung, Chaghai, Noshki, Pishin, Quetta
and Killa Abdulah

Punjab Okara, Sahiwal, Pakpattan, Multan, Khanewal, Chakwal, Jhelum, Attock and
Rawalpindi

Sindh Larkana, Kambar Shahdadkot, Naushahro Feroze, Shaheed Benazirabad, Shikarpur,

Jacobabad and Kashmore

Khyber Pakhtunkhwa Chitral, Upper Dir, Lower Dir, Charsadda, Mardan, Nowshera, Swabi, Swat, Bannu and
Lakki Marwat

@ USF intends to connect 40 unserved Tehsil Headquarters and Major Towns by laying an estimated 837 km of Optic Fiber
Cable in districts of Bajaur, Mohmand, Khyber, Orakzai, Kurram, FR Kohat and FR Peshawar.

@ Next Generation Optical Fiber Network § Services program will be expanding Optic Fiber Cable connectivity to unserved
Union Councils’ level. Countrywide surveys are being conducted and in the current financial year, USF will launch tenders
for 7 new projects targeting 507 Union Councils and an estimated 3,815 km of Optic Fiber Cable in the districts of Ghotki,
Kashmore, Sukkur, Khairpur, Naushahro Feroze, Shaheed Benazirabad, Khairpur, Rajanpur, Muzaffargarh, DG Khan, Layyah §
DG Khan.

In 2020, USF will measure success by its ability to deliver the Universal Service Fund efficiently and its ability to help bridge the
digital divide for the millions of Pakistanis touched by Universal Service Fund initiatives.

BripGING THE DigiTAL DiviDe

Provision of ICT Services through
USF Next Generation Optical Fiber
Network & Services

7
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arnessing the diverse talents and energies of our

people is vital to our continued success. This year,

significant resources were dedicated to developing
a universal understanding of what leadership looks like at
USF, and how each one of us can align our actions to the USF
framework. Our efforts have helped USF's highly engaged and
motivated team fulfill our commitment.

Performing competitively in  the Information and
Communication Technologies (ICT) sector requires competent
and empowered people working safely together across
Universal Service Fund.

We recruit, train and recompense people according to a
strategy that aims to organize our organization effectively. We
accelerate development of our people; grow and strengthen
our leadership capabilities; and enhance employee
performance through strong engagement.

Employee Engagement

Our focus in the year was to continue building a work culture
that is engaging and fosters high performance, innovation
and opportunities for everyone to grow and excel in their
respective areas.

Employee Benefits

Our employee benefits are focused on building a workplace
that is engaging, inclusive, and one that gives our employees
the trust to believe in our vision. During the year, we have
reviewed and maintained our employee benefits across all
levels and grades.

Our employee benefits enable employees to achieve a
positive work life balance by offering them flexible timings,
medical coverage, as well as monetary benefits. Rewards
schemes such as spot recognition awards and promotions are
exercised to engage and motivate employees.

Training and Development

Investing in our people is critical to our success. Each of our
colleagues undergoes formal performance development
reviews and are encouraged to nurture their skills through our
various training opportunities.

We recognize that there are valuable and productive
abilities in people of various abilities. We support people
of determination to build long-term opportunities at our
organization.

S) ANNUAL REPORT 2019-20

Our people are essential to the successful delivery of
the Universal Service Fund strategy and to sustaining
organizational performance over the long term.

USF is committed to creating amazing career opportunities
for the people of Pakistan. The Company endeavours to be an
equal opportunity employer and displays no discrimination
regarding age, gender, colour or religion in its decisions to
recruit or develop careers.

We support a gender balanced workforce and equal
opportunities at all levels. This helps us achieve a vibrant
with strengths and
perspectives that help drive innovation and engagement
across the organization.

workforce diverse experiences,

Diversity and Inclusion (D§])

We believe the success of our company must have a diverse
workforce comprised of individuals with different ideas,
strengths, interests and backgrounds. Our diversity and
inclusion (D§l) approach focuses on talent acquisition,
progression, retention, leadership visibility, and inclusive
culture.

We strive to create an environment where all our employees
are heard and appreciated — regardless of gender, nationality,
ethnic origin, religion, world view, different abilities, age or
identity. By embedding D§l into our operations, we have a
better understanding of the needs of our people as well as
the needs of our varied partners and stakeholders.

We provide equal opportunity in recruitment, career
development, promotion, training and rewards for all our
people, including those with disabilities.

We face another exciting and promising year in FY 2020-21
to deliver on our vision to provide Broadband access to more
and more people in rural areas of Pakistan. Let us continue
to work as we have until now, safe in the knowledge that
we have the ingredients to succeed in our mission, and to
demonstrate every day that that Information Communication
Technologies (ICTs) is for all!
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Impact of ICT on Different Industries

In the present world, Information and Communication Technologies (ICT) is a rare occurrence whose speed is worth keeping with.
The moment an economy adopts digitalization, it allows sustainable business models to be developed that cut through the
whole economy. Pakistan, a country with a population of 200 million is taking deliberate measures towards a digitalized
economy. Information and Communication Technologies (ICT) are changing Pakistan's society by giving new opportunities for
businesses, governments and citizens in a wide range of sectors including agriculture, finance, health, education, and many more.

USF is empowering the country’s population by enabling
them to participate in the exchange of data and sharing of
information through Information and Communication
Technologies (ICTs). Farmers are reaping the benefits from
access to information about market, health, and weather
services in remote areas. The improved cutting-edge
strategies and information about the best pesticides to
use on the farms for better harvests are increasing the
farmer's productivity and income.

Agriculture

The emerging role of ICT has created an immense impact on
healthcare. It has become easy to deliver treatment and care
to a patient living in a remote and isolated area. ICT enables
healthcare providers to continuously monitor and interact
with their patients and track their current health condition
from afar. ICT promotes patient-centered healthcare at a
lower cost, improve quality of care and information sharing,
educate health professionals and patients, encourages a
new form of relationship between patients and their health
providers, and reduce travel time.

Health

Information and Communication Technologies (ICT) are providing financial
access to the rural population and boosting the burgeoning digital
payment industry in Pakistan. There is growing evidence that improved
access to financial services positively impacts development and poverty
reduction. The businesses that have digitally transformed are prospering
in the country. The process of creating, marketing, buying, selling and
distribution have become simpler due to the digital economy.
Furthermore, social networking websites are also providing a worldwide
platform to interact with millions of potential clients at no cost, thereby
increasing the market size. This has impacted positively on poor and
low-income households as well as micro, small, and medium firms.

Finance

Information and Communication Technologies (ICT) is
playing a meaningful role in changing and modernizing the
educational systems and the way of learning. The
transformation gets to increase learning gains for students
to provide learners an opportunity to develop creativity,
communication skills, and other thinking skills. It aids literacy
movements and enhances the scope of education by
facilitating mobile learning and inclusive education for the
rural population.

Education

.
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Deloitte.

Deloitte Yousuf Adil
Chartered Accountants
#18-8/1

Chohan Mansion,

G-B Markaz, lslamabad
Pakistan

Tel: +92 (51) 8350601
+92 (51) 8734400
Fax: +92 (51) 8350602

www.deloitte.com

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF UNIVERSAL SERVICE FUND
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the annexed financial statements of Universal Service Fund (the Company) which
comprise statement of financial position as at June 30, 2020 and statement of Income and
expenditure and other comprehensive income and statement of cash flows for the year then ended,
and notes to the financial statements, including 2 summary of significant accounting policies and
other explanatory information, and we state that we have obtained all the information and
explanations which, to the best of our knowledge and bellef, were necessary for the purposes of
the audit.

In cur opinion and to the best of cur information and according to the explanations given to us,
the statement of financial position, statement of income and expenditure and other comprehensive
income and statement of cash flows together with the notes forming part thereof conform with the
accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan and give the information required by
the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017), In the manner so required and respectively give a true
and fair view of the state of the Company's affairs as at June 30, 2020 and of the surplus, other
comprehensive income, and its cash flows for the year then ended.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs) as
applicable in Pakistan. Qur responsibilities under those standards are further described in the
Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements sectlon of our report. We are
independent of the Company In accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for
Accountants’ Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants as adopted by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of Pakistan and we have fulfilled our other esthical responsibilities in accordance with
the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.

Other Matter

The financial statements of the Company for the year ended June 30, 2019 were audited by another
firm of chartered accountants, whose report dated September 6, 2019, included emphasis of
matter paragraph regarding uncertainty related to the outcome of certain cases.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor's Report Thereon

Management is responsible for other information. However, no such information is published along
with these financial statements.

Memaes of
Dieloltte Toucke Tohmatio Limited
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Chartered Accountants

Responsibilities of Management and Board of Directors for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan and the
requirements of Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017) and for such internal control as management
determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company's
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liguidate
the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Board of directors are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Qur objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a2 high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with [SAs as applicable in Pakistan will always
detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and
are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

= [dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

+ Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company's internal control.

+ [Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

+ Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the geoing concern basls of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists,
we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report.

Member of
Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu Limited
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Deloitte Yousuf Adil
Chartered Accountants

However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a
going concern.

» Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with the board of directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, Including any significant deficlencles in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

Repart on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

Based on our audit, we further report that in our opinion:

a) proper books of account have been kept by the Company as required by the Companies
Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017);

b} the interim statement of financial position, the interim statement of income and
expenditure and other comprehensive Income and the Interim statement of cash flows
together with the notes thereon have been drawn up In conformity with the Companies
Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017) and are in agreement with the books of account and returns;

c) Investments made, expenditure incurred and guarantees extended during the half year
were for the purpose of the Company's business; and

d} No Zakat was deductible at source under the Zakat and Ushr Ordinance, 1980 (XVIII of
1980).

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor's repart is Mr. Shahzad
All,

N kg4 Al

Chartered Accountants

Place: Islamabad
Date: October 19, 2020

Member of

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsy Limited
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UNIVERSAL SERVICE FUND

(A Company incorporated under Section 42 of the Companies Act, 2017)

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AS AT JUNE 30, 2020

Note
ASSETS
NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Property and equipment 4
Intangible assets 5
Long term deposits
Long term advances &
CURRENT ASSETS
Advances 7
Short-term prepayments -]
Interest accrued
Cther recelvables 9
Cash and bank balance 10
TOTAL ASSETS
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
EQUITY
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Fund balance (restricted) 11
Ceferred capital grant 12
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Trade and other payables 13
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS 14

The annexed noles, from 1 [o 23 form an integral part of these financial Smamm:lﬂy

CHIEF UTIVE OFFICER

June 30, 2020 June 30, 2019
e RUpEES
16,141,873 24,580,063
32,028,972 24 984 338
127,500 127.500
2,267,085 498,259
50,565,430 50,300,160
1,691,923,984 504,941 286
6,331,777 2775593
133,083,806 85,152,640
1,096,216,888 1,086.,016,872
2,877,921,554 3,713,359,850
6,005,488,009 5,402,246,041
6,056,053,529 5,452,546,201
5754152775 5,017,064,385
48,170,845 40674 401
5,802,323,620 5,085,738.786
253,729,909 385,807 415
6,056,053,529 5452 546 201

1
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UNIVERSAL SERVICE FUND

(A Company incorporated under Section 42 of the Companles Act, 2017)

STATEMENT OF INCOME AND EXPENDITURE AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

INCOME

Amortization of deferred capital grant
EXPENDITURE

Administrative and general expenses

Subsidy grant for projects
Fee to technical auditors for projects

FUNDS (RESTRICTED) RECOGNIZED AS GRANT
AGAINST EXPENDITURE

NET SURPLUS FOR THE YEAR

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
item noi to be reclassified to statement of income and
expenditure account in subsequent perods

Re-measurement loss on defined banefit plan

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR

Note

12

15
16
17

1

The annexed noles, from 1 to 23 form an infegral part of these financial statements

LYy

bu@d’\mﬂs OFFICER

7
S) ANNUAL REPORT 2019-20

June 30, 2020 June 30, 2018
Rupees
19,589,046 15,027,063
402,651,485 338523611
4,026,608,808 7,397,098 688
24,268,108 34,416,102
4,453,528 401 7.770,039,401
(4,433,939,355) (7.755,012,338)
4,444 257 081 7,759,025 410
10,317,726 4,013,072
(10,317,726) (4,013,072)
OR
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UNIVERSAL SERVICE FUND

(A Company Incorporated under Section 42 of the Companies Act, 2017)

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Subsidy grant disbursement

Technical audit fee

Liquidated damages, profit on deposit account and others
Fayment to suppliers and employees

Net cash used in operating activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Procurement of property and equipment
Procurement of intangible assets

Net cash used in investing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Grant received

Net cash generated from financing activities

Net (decrease)/increase in cash & cash equivalents
Cash & cash equivalents at beginning of year

Cash & cash equivalents at end of year

June 30, 2020 June 30, 2019
Note seemeees RUpB@s

16 (5,472,282,626) (6,205,120.282)
17 (24,268,108) (34.451,262)
251,171,979 356,100,482
(461,973,851) (181,140,380)
(5,707.352,606) (6.064.611.452)
4 {1,300,061) (13,857 637)
5 (16,785,429) (23.740,402)
(18,085,490) (37.598.039)

11 4,850,000,000 6,949,000,000
4,890,000,000 6,949,000,000
(835,438,006) 846,790,508
3,713,359,650 2,866,569, 141

10 2,877,921,554 3,713.,358,650

The annexed notes, from 1 to 23 form an integral part of these financial stalements.

|

cHEF UKE OFFICER
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UNIVERSAL SERVICE FUND

(A Campany incorporated under Section 42 of the Companies Act, 2017)
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR JUNE 30, 2020

1

21

2.2

23

STATUS AND ACTIVITIES

The Universal Service Fund Company ("the Company”) was incorporaled in Pakistan as a Public
Company, limited by guarantes, not having a share capital and licensed under section 42 of the
repealed Companies Ordinance, 1984 (replaced with Companies Act, 2017) on December 12, 2008 as
a not-for-profit entity. The Company was formed under Section 10 of the Universal Service Fund Rules,
2008 ("the Rules™ and its registered office is situated at 5th floor, HBL Tower. Jinnah Avenua,
Islamabad

Pursuant to Section 16 of the Rules. cperations of the Company are funded by The Federal
Government through the Universal Service Fund ("USF™), a separate entity established under section
33 A of the Telecommunication Re-organization Act. 1998 USF is kept in the non-lapsable public fund
account of the Federal Government maintained with the Federal Treasury Office. The account is
operated by Ministry of Information Technology (MolT), The primary objective of the Company is lo
plan, develop, finance and execute communication network projects and senvices to un-served of under
served areas of Pakistan as defined under Section 26 of the Rules mainly through disbursement of
grants received from Govemment of Pakistan in the form of subsidies 1o selected contributories 1o
USF, for execution of the refated telecom projects.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the accounting and reporting
standards a5 appiicable in Pakistan. The approved accounting and reporting standards applicabie in
Pakistan comprise of.

- International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS Standards) issued by the International Accounting
Standards Board (IASB) as notified under the Companies Act. 2017 (the Act);

- Accounting Standard for Mot for Profit Organizations (Accounting Standard for NPOs) issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan as notified under the Companies Act. 2017, and

- Provisions of and directives issusd under the Companies Act, 2017

VWhere provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 differ from the IFRS
Standards or the Accounting Standard for NPOs, the provisions of and directives issued under the
Companies Act. 2017 have boen followed.

Basis of measurement

These financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention excapt for hability
for gratuity. which is camied at present value of defined benefit obligation net of fair value of plan asset

ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS

New accounting standards / amendmaents and IFRS interpretations that are effective for the year ended
June 30, 2020

7
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IFRS 16 ‘Leases” This standard superseded 1AS 17
‘Leases’, IFRIC 4, SIC 15 and SIC 27 upon its
effective date

IFRS 14 - Regulatory Deferral Accounts - IFRS 14
was onginally ssued in January 2014 and applies to
an entity's first annusl IFRS financial statements for a
period beginning on or after 1 January 2016
However, SECP has adopted from July 01, 2019.

Amendments to IFRS 9 'Financial Instruments’ -
prepayment features with negative compansation

Amendments to IAS 28 ‘Investments in Associates
and Joint Vientures' - Long-term inferests in associates
and joint ventures

Amendments to IAS 18 ‘Employee Bonefits' - Pian
amandment, curtailment or seitiement

IFRIC 23 'Uncartainty over Income Tax Treatments’
Clarifies the accounting treatment in relation to
determination of taxable profit (tax loss), tax bases,
unused tax losses, unused tex credids and tax rates,
when there is unceriainty over income tax treatments
under 1AS 12 'Income Taxes'

Effective from accounting
period beginning on or after

January 01, 2018

Juty 01, 2019

January 01, 2018

January 01, 20158

January 01, 2018

January 01, 2018

New accounting standards / amendments and IFRS interpretations that are not yot effective

The following standards, amendments and interpretations are only affective for accounting periods,
baginning on or after the date mentioned against each of them. These standards, interpratations and the
amendments are either not relevant to the Company's operations or are not expected fo have significant
impact on the Company's financial statements other than cerlain additional disclosures

Amendments to the conceptual framework for financial reporting,
including amandmants to references to the conceptual framework in
IFRS

Amendments to IFRS 3 'Business Combinations’ - Definition of a
business

Amendmants to IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements' and
IAS 8 'Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and
Errors’ - Definition of materal and Classification of labilities as
current or non-currant.

Amendments to IFRS 2 ‘Financial Instrumeants’, [AS 39 'Financial
Instrumants: Recognition and Measurement' and IFRS 7 'Financial
Instruments: Disclosures’ - Interest rate banchmark reform

Amandments 1o IFRS 3 'Business Combinations’ - Referance to the
conceptual framework

Amendments to IAS 16 "Property, Plant and Equipment - Proceads
before intended use

Effective from accounting
period beginning on or after
January 01, 2020

January 01, 2020

January 01, 2020

January 01, 2020

January 01, 2022

January 01, 2022

1
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23

Amendments o IAS 37 'Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and January 01, 2022
Caontingent Assets’ - Onerous Contracts — cost of fulfilling a
contract

Amendment to IFRS 16 ‘Leases’ - Covid-18 related rent January 01, 2020
concessions

Cartain annual improvements have alzo been made o a number of IFRSs,

The management anticipates that the adoption of the above standards, amendments and interpretations
in future periods, will have no material impact on the financal statements other than the impact on
presentabon/disciosures

Further, the following new standards and interpretaions have been issued by the Internaticnal
Accounting Standards Board (IASB), which are yet to be notified by the Securiies and Exchange
Commission of Pakistan (SECP), for the purpose of their applicability in Pakistan

IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts
IFRS 1 First-time Adoption of Intematicnal Financial Reporting Standards

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ESTIMATES

The accounting pelicies have been applied consistently to all periods presented in these financial
statements excepl the Note 3.1

Changes in accounting policy

IFRS 16 “Leases” has replaced IAS 17 "Leases”, the former leaser accounting standard, and has
become effective from annual accounting periods beginning on or after January 1, 2015, Under tha new
standard, almost all leases which meel the critenia disdosed In the standard will be recognized on the
statement of financial position with on exeplions of short term and low value leases. Under IFRS 16, an
asset (the right to use the leases item) is recognized along with corresponding financial liability to pay
rentals at the present value of future lease payments over the lease term, discounted with the specfic
incremental borrowing rate.

The Company has adopted IFRS 16 from July 01, 2019 using the modified retrospective approach and
the Company has assessed that the adoption of IFRS 16 does not have any material financial impact on
these financial statements.

Functional and presentation currency

These financial statements have been presented in Pakistan Rupees which is the Company's functional
and presentation currency.

Significant accounting judgments and estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with approved accounting and reporting standards
requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires management to exercise Iis
judgment in the process of applying the Company's accounting policies

Estimates and judgments are conlinually evaluated and are based on historic experience and cther
factors, including expoctations of future events that are believed to be reasonsbie under the
circumstances Revisions to accounting estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimate is
revised and in future periods affected.

In the process of applying the Company's accounting policies, management has made the following
estimales and judgments, which are significant to the financial statements:

7
S) ANNUAL REPORT 2019-20

53



54

324

a2

333

334

Property, equipment and intanglble assets

The Company reviews the appropriatenass of the rate of depreciation, useful lives and residual values
used in the calculation of depreciation/ amortization on an annual basis. Any change in estimates in the
future yaars might affect the carrying amounts of the respective items of properly and equipment and
intangibie assets, with a corresponding effect on the depreciation and amorlization charge

Employes benefils

Cartain actuanal assumptions have been adopted for valuation of present value of defined banafit
obligations. Changes in these assumptions in fulure years may affect the liabifity under this scheme in
those years.

Taxation

In making the estimate for income tax payable by the Company, the Company takes into scoount the
applicable tax laws, and decisions taken by the taxation authorities. In Instances where the Company's
views differ from the views taken by the income tax department at the assessment stage, and where the
Company considers that its views on ilems of a materal nature ase in accordance with the law, the
related amounts are disclosed as contingent liabilties.

Provisions and contingencies

A provision is recognized if, as a result of a past event, the Company has a present legal or constructive
obligation that can be estimated reliably, and it Is probable that an outflow of economic benefils wil be
raquired to settla the obligation Provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash
ﬂnw-sataMmmwﬂmwnmmmmdmmﬂhadmandmm
specific to the liability. The unwinding of the discount is recognized as a finance cost, if any,

Wwhere it is not probable thal an outfiow of rescurces embodying economic benefits will be required to
seftie the obligation or the amount of the obligation cannol be measured with sufficient reliability, it s
disclosed as contingent liabifity,

Property and equipment

ngmsmmmmmwmammmimmimmmmm} Cost compnses
of acquisition cost, non-refundable indirect taxes and any other directly attributable costs.

Depreciation is charged on assets using the straight line method, at the rates stated in note 4. A full
mm'sdmmwﬂnhmardeMMﬂmﬁﬁmndmmMﬁanndaptmﬁmismw
in the month of an assels' retirement.

Useful lives are detarmined by the management based on the expected usage of an asset expected
physical wear and tear, technical and commercial cbsolescence. legal and similar limits an the use of
assets and other similar factors.

Thnunm’midualvalm.Mlmmmmmwa@mdilapmﬁm.a{am
financial year end The effects of adjustments lo residual values, useful lives and methods are
recognized prospectively as a change in accounting estimates,

An item of property and equipment is de-recognized upon disposal or whan no future economic banafits
are expected from is use or disposal Any gain or loss arising on de-recogniion of the assets
(calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amourt of the asset) is
indudodhﬂmhumnmdiﬂ:lﬂdﬂuﬂiﬁhﬂmﬂlﬂﬂﬂ?ﬁ&fﬂn&aﬂﬂhd&ﬂﬁgnﬂd
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The cost of replacing part of an item of property and equipment is recognized in the carrying amount of
tha item if it is probable that the future economic benafits embodied within the part will fliow to the
Company and its cost can be measured refiably, The carying amount of the replaced part is
derecognized. The cost of the day-to-day servicing of property and eguipment is recognized in the
income and expenditure statement as incurmed.

Right-of-use asssts and their related lease liability

Right of-use assets

On initial recognition, right-cf-use assets are measured at an amount equal to initial lease liablity
adjusted for any lease payments made at or before the commencement date, plus any initial direct costs
incurred and an estimate of costs to be incurred o dismantle and remove the underying assel or to
restore the underlying asset or the site on which it is located.

Right-of-use assets are subsequently slaled at cos! less any accumulated depreciation/ accumulated
Impairment losses and are adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liability. The remeasuremant of
lease liability will only occur in cases where the terms of the lease are changed during tha lease tenor.

Right-of-use assels are depreciated over their expected useful lives using the straight-line method
Deapreciation on additions (new leases) is charged from the month in which the leases are entered into
Nao depreciation is charged in the manth in which the leases mature or are terminated.

Lease liability against right-of-use assets

The lease liabilities are initially measured as the present value of the remaining lease payments,
d'rsmnmdusingmnmmrmMpmmmm.mqu:mmmmmwmm.m
Company's incremental borrowing rate

The lease liability is subsequently measured at amortised cost Using the effective interest rate method
Remeasurements of lease liabilities only occur in cases where the terms of the lease are changed
during the lease tenor. These remeasurements of lease liabilities are recognised as adjustments to the
carrying amount of ralated right-of-use assets afler the date of initial recognition,

Each lease payment is allocated between a reduction of the liability and a finance cost. The finance cos
fs charged to the statement of income and expenditure over the lease pericd so as to produce a
constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of the lability for each period,

Intangibles

An intangible asset is recognized if it is probable that Future economic benefits that are attributable to the
asset will flow to the Company and that cost of such an asset can also be measured reliably

Intangible assets are measured on initial recognition at cost, baing the fair value of the consideration
given. Following initial recognition, intangible assels are carried at cost less accumulated amortization
and accumulated impairment, if any.

The useful lives of Intangible assets are assessed either as finite or indefinite. The Company does not
have an intangible asset with indefinite useful life. Intangible assets with finite useful lives are amorized
over the period of their usaful life, at rate mentioned in note 5. In respect of additions and disposal of
intangible assets during a year, amortization is charged to statement of income and expenditure from the
month of acquisition and up ta the month preceding the disposal of such intangible assets.

Gains and losses arising from the de-recognition of Intangitle assets are measured as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and camying amount of the asset, and recognized in income and
expenditure statemant when the asset is de-recognized.

Changes in expected useful lives or the expected pattern of consumption of future economic benafits,
embodied in intangible assets. are accounted for by changing the useful life or smodization method, as
appropriale, and treated as a change in accounting estimate.
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313

i

Advances, deposits and other receivables

These are recognized al cost, which is the fair value of the consideration given. However, an
assesament is mada al each statemant of financial position date to determine whether there is an
indication that a financial asset or group of assels may be impaired. If such @n indication exists, the
estimated recoverable amount of that asset is determined and any impairment loss (s recognized for the
difference between the asset's recovarable amount and its camying value,

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents are camied at cost in the statement of financial postion in case of local
currency balances and at closing exchange rate, in case of foreign cumency balances.

Fund balance {restricted)

Grants received from MolT are classified as restricted grants and transferred to fund balance
(restrictad). Such grant is recognized to the statemant of income and expenditure to the extent of actual
expenditure incurrad thera against.

Deferred capital grant

Restricted funds utilized for capital expenditure are transferred from the Fund balance (restricted) and
sccounted for a5 a deferred capital grant An amount equal to the charge for depraciation and

amartization for the year, on property and equipment and intangible assets acquired, is than recognized
in the income and expenditura statament

Trade and other payables

GMMW&MWHH&EMWNM%Hls'ﬂ'lefnlr\ralmnﬂi‘\amnsddaﬂﬁunmbupaidh
future for goods and services received.

Provision

Hmmmmmmmmﬂmmiwlhmlmmmwmaﬁamm
of past events, it is probable that an outfiow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required
to settle the obligation. and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

Staff benefits
Defined benefit plan

The Company operales a funded gratuity schema for employees who have completed the minimum
qualifying period of service fo the Company. Provision for gratuity is made to covar obligations under the
scheme in accordance with the actuarial recommendations using the Projected Unit Credit Method,
Acluarial gain or loss is recorded in other comprehensive income. The |atest actuarial valuation was
carmied out as at June 30, 2020, details are given in the note 13 of the financial statements.

Compensated absences

The compensated absences provides a shori-term leave encashment benefit to its employees whereby,
employees can carmy forward up to @ maximum of 10 leaves for a year Employees can sither avail these
leaves or an-cash them.

1
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Taxation
Current

Provision for taxation is based on taxable profits, at the cument rates of taxation, after taking into
account tax credits and tax rebates, if any. Further, the Company's income s not liable for minimum tax.
under Section 113 of the Income Tax Ordinance. 2001. as the Company considers the amount recaived
from the MolT as grant

Deferred

Deferred tax is recognized using the liability method, on all major temporary differences al the statemant
ol financial position date, batween the tax bases of assets and liabilties and their carrying amounts for
financial reporting purposes,

Deferred income tax assets are recognized for all deductible temporary differences and carry-forward of
unused tax losses, to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the
deductible temporary differences and / or carry-forward of unused tax losses can be utilized,

The carrying amount of all deferred tax assets is reviewsd at each statemant of financial position date
and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available 1o
gliow all or part of tha deferrad tax assals o be utilized.

Deferred income tax assets and liabiiities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the
period when the asset is realized or the liabllity is settled, based on the tax rates (and tax laws) that have
been enacted or substantively enacted at the statement of financial position date,

Income

Profit on bank deposits

Profit on bank deposit is accrued using the effective interest rate mathod.
Other income

Any ather income is recorded on an accrual basis.
Profit on bank deposits and other receipts are made part of fund balance (restricted) and are adjusted
against future funding from MolT.

Foreign currency translation

Foreign cummency transactions during the year are recorded af the exchange rates apgroximating those
ruling on the date of the transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities in foreign cuencies are translated
at the rates of exchange which approximate those prevailing on the statement of financial position date
Gains and losses on translation are taken to the income and expenditure stalement. Non-monetary
items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the
exchange rates as at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair value In
a foreign cumency sre transiated using the exchange rates at the date whan the fair value was
determined

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabiliies are recognised in the Company's statement of financial position
when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

Financial assels and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the scquisition or issue of financial assets and financial Fabilibes (other than
financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are added to or deducted from
the fair value of the financial assets or financial habilities, as appropate, on initial recognition.

7
) ANNUAL REPORT 2019-20

57



58

3174

]

i)

Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial asseis or financial liabiites at fair
value through profit or loss are recognised immediately in the slalement of profit or loss.

Financlal assets

All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade date
basis. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of
assets within the time frama established by regulation or convention in the marketplace,

All recognised financial assets are measured subsequently in thair entirety at aither amortised cost or
fair value, depending on the ciassification of the financial assets.

Debt instruments designated at amartised cost
Debt instruments that meet the following conditions are measured subsequently at amortised cost

* the financial asset is held within a business mode! whose objective is to hold financial assets In order
to collect contractual cash flows: and

* Ihe contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash fiows that are solaly
payments of principal and intarest on the principal amount outstanding.

Debt instrument designated at other comprehensive income

Debt instruments that meet the following conditions are measured subsequently al fair value through
other comprehensive income (FVTOCIH):

-maﬁnandulaswlhhalduﬁﬂuhahmmmodnl#mubmﬁmlsmmwmmmm
contractual cash flows and seliing the financial assets; and
-thamnﬂmmnnsufﬂuﬁnardaimyu&ﬂwmmﬁmmmmmmmaramm
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding,

By default. all other financial assets are measured subsequently a1 fair value through profit or loss
(FVTPL).

For financial instruments other than purchased or onginated credit-impaired financial assats (Lo, assets
mmamammhdmmmmwﬂmj,muﬁmmﬂmumwmmum
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impaired financial assets, a credit-adjusted effective interest rate is calculated by discounting the
estimated future cash flows, including expected credit losses. to the amortised cost of the debt
instrument on initial recognition

The amortised cost of a financial asset is the amount a? which the financial assel is measured at initial
recognition minus the principal repayments, plus the cumulative amortisation using the effective interest
method of any difference between that intial amount and the maturity amount, adjusted for any loss
allowance

The effective intarest method is & method of calculating the amortised cost of a debt instrument and of
allccating interest income over the relevant pariod,
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Interest income is recognised using the effective interest method for debl instruments measured
subsequently at amortised cost and al FVTOCI For financial instruments other than purchased or
orniginated credit-impaired financial assets, interest income is calculated by applying the effective interest
rate to the gross cammying amount of a financial asset, except for financial assets that have subsaquenthy
become credit-impaired (see below). For financial assets that have subseguently become credit-
impaired, interest income is recognised by applying the effective interest rate to the amortised cost of
the financial asset H, in subsequent reporing periods, the credit risk on the credit-impaired financial
instrument improves so thalt the financial asset i no longer credil-impaired, interest income is
recognised by applying the affective interast rate to the gross carrying amount of the financial assat

For purchased or originated creditimpaired financial assets, the Company recognises interest income
by applying the credit-adjusted effective interest rate to the amorised cost of the financial asset from
initial recognition. The calculation does not revert to the gross basis even if the credit risk of the financial
asset subsaquently improves so that the financial asset is no longer credit-impaired

Interest incomie is recoanised in crofit or loss and s included in tha “finance income - interast income®
fiif} Equity instruments designaled as af FVTOC!

On initial recognition, the Company may make an irrevocable election (on an instrument-by-instrument
basis) to designate investments in eguity instrumants as at FVTOCI, Designalion at FVTOCI is not
permitted if the equity invesiment is held for trading or if it is contingent consideration recognised by an
aocquirer in a business combination

Investmants in equity instruments at FYTOC! are initially measured at fair value plus transaclion costs.
Subsequently, they are measured at fair value with gains and losses arising from changes in fair value
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in the investments revaluation resena.
The cumulative gain or loss will not be reclassified to profit or loss on disposal of the squity investments,
instead, they will be transferred to retained eamings.

Dividends on these investments in equity instruments are recognised in profit or loss in accordance with
IFRS 9, unless the dividends clearly represent a recovery of part of the cost of the |nvestment
Dividends are included in the finance income’ ling item in profit or loss

{iv) Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assels that do nol meet the criteria for being measured at amortised cost or FYTOCI are
measured at FVTPL. Specifically.

- Investments in equity instruments are classified ss at FVTPL, unless the Company designates an
equity investment that is neither held for trading nor a contingent consideration arising from a business
combination as at FVTOCIH on initial recognition.

- Debt instruments that do not meet the amortised cost criteria or the FYTOC criteria are classified as at
FVTPL. In addition, debt instruments that meet either the amortised cost criteria o the FVTOC criteria
may be designated as at FVTPL upon initial recognition if such designation eliminates or significantly
reduces a measurement or recognition inconsistancy (so called ‘accounting mismatch’) that would arise
fram measuring assets or liabilities or recognising the gains and losses on them on different bases. The
Company has not designated any debt instruments as at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value at the end of each reporting pericd, with any fair
valug gains or losses recognised in profit or loss.
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The Company recognises a loss allowance for expected credil losses on investments in debt
instruments that are measured at amortised cost or at FYTOCH, lease receivables, trade receivables,
contract aseats, as well as on financial guarantee contracts. The amount of expected credit losses is
updated at each reporting date to reflect changes In credit risk since initial recognition of the respective
financial instrumant.

The Company always recognises lifefime ECL for frade receivables, contract assets and lease
receivables. The expected credit losses on these financial assets are estimated using a provision matrix
basad on the Company's historical credit loss expenienca, adjusted for factors fhat are specific to the
debtors, general economic conditions and an assessment of both the curmant as well as the forecast
direction of conditions at the reporting date, including time value of money where appropriate.

For all other financial instruments, the Company recognises lifetime ECL when there has been a
gignificant increasa in cradit risk since initial recogniton. However, if the credit nsk on the financial
instrument has not increased significantly since initlal recognition, the Company measures the loss
allowance for that financial instrument at an amount equal to 12-month ECL The assessment of
whather lifetime ECL should be recognised is based on significant increases in the likelinood or risk of a
default cecurring since initial recognition instead of on evidence of a financial assel being credit-
impaired at the reporting date.

Lifetime ECL represents the expected credit losses that will result from all possible default events over
the expected life of a financial instrument. In contrast. 12-month ECL represanis the portion of lifetime
ECL that is expected to result from default events on a financial instrument that are possible within 12
manths after the reporting date:

Sianif i ;

In assessing whether the credit risk on a financial instrument has increased significantly since initial
recognition, the company compares the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument at the
reporting date with the risk of a defaull occurring on the financial instrument at the date of initial
recognition. In making this assessment, the company considers both guantitative and qualitative
information thal is reasonable and supportable, including historical experience and forward-looking
information that is available without undue cost or effort Forward-looking information considered
includes the future prospects of the industries in which the company's deblors operate, obtained from
economic expart reports, financial analysis, governmental bodies, relevant think-tanks and other similar
organisations, as well as consideration of various external sources of actual and forecast economic

In particular, the following information is taken into account when assessing whether credit risk has increased
significantly since initial racognition:

- an actual or expected significant deterioration in the financlal instrument's external (if available) or intemnal
credit rating;

- significant delerioration in external market indicators of cradit risk for a particular financial instrument,

2.g. & significant increase in the credit spread, the credit default swap prices for the debitor, of the jength of
time or the extent to which the fair value of a financial asse! has been lass than s amortised cost:

- existing or forecast adverse changes in business, financial or economic conditions that are expecied to
cause 8 significant decrease in the deblor's ability to meet its debt obligations;

= an aclual of expected significant deterioration in the operating resulls of the debior,

- significant increases in credit risk on other financial mstruments of the same deblar;
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- an actual or expecied significant adverse change in the regulatory, sconomic. or lechnalogical environment
of the debtor that results in a significant decrease in the deblor's abiity to meet its debt obligations,

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment, the Company presumes that the credit sk on a
financial asset has increased significantly since initial recognition when contractual payments are maore than
30 days past due, unless the Company has reasonable and supportable information thal demaonstrales
athanwisa.

(i) Rafinition of default
The Company considers the following as constituting an event of default for internal credit risk management
purposes as historical expenence indicates thal financial assets that meet aither of the following criteria are
generally nol recoverabla;
- when there is a breach of financial covenants by the deblor; or

- information developed internally or obtained from external sources Indicates thal the debtor is uniikely to pay
Mmmxmmmwhhmslmduwhhmﬂmmhmlheubfﬂmﬂmnﬂ.

Irrespective of the above analysis, the Company considers that defaull has occurred when a Fnancial assel is

more than 380 days past cdue wnless the Company has reasonable and supportable information to
demonstrate that a more lagging default critenon ks mare appropriate.

(i) Credit-impaired financial assets:
A financial asset is credit-impaired whan one or more events that have a detrimental impact on the estimated
future cash flows of that financial asset have cccurred, Evidence that @ financial asset is credi-mpaired
includes obsarvable data about the following events:
(a) significant financial difficulty of the isswer or the borrower.
(b} a breach of contract, such as a defaull or past due event

(c} the lender(s) of the bormower, for economic or conbractual reasons relating to the borrower's financial
difficulty, having granted 1o the borrower a concessionis) that the lender{s) would not othenwise consider:

(d) it is becoming probable that the bormower will enter bankruplcy or other financial recrganisation; ar

(8) the disappearance of an active market for that financial asset because of financial difficulties

(i) Wirite-off policy,

The Company writes off a financial asset when thare is information indicating that the debtor is in savere
financial difficulty and there i no realistic prospect of recovery, e.g. when the deblor has teen placed under
liquidation or has entered inlo bankruplcy proceedings, of in the case of trade receivables, when the amounts
are over two years past due, whichever occurs sconer. Financial assets written off may still be subject to
enforcement aclivities under the Company's recovery procedures, taking into account lagal advice where
appropriale. Any recovenes made afe recognised in profit or loss.

The measurement of expected credit losses is a function of the probability of default, loss given defaull (e
the magnitude of the loss if there is a dafault) and the exposure al defaull. The assessment of the probability
of defauit and loss given defaull is based on historical data adjusted by forward-looking information as
mmm.hwmmmmmmmwmmummmhm'gm
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carrying amount at the reporting date; for financial guarantee contracts, the exposure includes the amount
drawn down as at the reporting date, together with any additional amounts expected to be drawn down in the
future by default date determined based on historical trend, the Company's understanding of the specific
future financing needs of the debtors. and ather relevant forward-kooking information

For financial assets, the expected credit loss is estimated a5 the difference between all contractual cash flows
that are due to the Company in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the Company axpacis
o receive, discounted at the original effective interest rate. For & lease receivabie, the cash Nows used for
datermining the expected credit lossas is consistent with the cash flows used in measuring the lease
receivable in accordance with IFRS 16 Leases

For a financial guarantee contract, as the Company is required to make payments anly in the event of a
defaull by the deblor in accordance with the terms of the instrument thal is guaranteed, the expected loss
gllowance ks the expecied payments (o reimburse the holder for a credit loss that it incurs less any amounts
that the Company expects fo raceive from the holder, the deblor or any other party

If the Company has measured the loss allowance for a financial instrumant at an amount equal 1o ifetime ECL
in Lhe previous reporting period, bu! determines at the current reporting date that the conditions for Iifetime
ECL are no longer met, the Company maasures the loss aliowance at an amount equal 1o 12-month ECL at
the current reparting date, except for assets for which simplified approach was used.

The Company recognises an impairment gain or loss in profit or loss for all financial instruments with a
cofresponding adjustmant lo their carrying amount through @ loss allowance account, except for investments
In cebt instruments that are measured at FYTOC, for which the loss aliowance is recognised in othar
comprehensive incoma and accumulated in the investment revaluation reserve, and does nol reduce the
carrying amount of the financial asset in the statement of financial pasition

The Company derecognises a financial asset only when the contractual rights fo the cash flows from the azset
axpire, of when it transfers the financial asse! and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownarship of the
assel to another entity. If the Company neither transfers nor retaing substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership end continues to control the transferred assel, the Company recognises its retained interast in the
assel and an associated liability for amounts it may have to pay. If the Company retains substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Company continues io recogrise the
financial assel and also recognises a collateralised borrowing for the procaeds received,

On darecognition of a financial asset measured al amortised cosl. the differance between the asset's carrying
amount and the sum of the consideration received and recarvable is recognised In profit or loss. In addition,
an derecognition of an invesiment in a debt instrument classified as at FVTOCI, the cumulative gain or loss
previously accumulated in the investments revaluation resarve is reclassified to profit or loss. In contrast. an
derecognition of an investment in equity instrument which the Company has elecled on inifial recognition o
measura at FVTOC!, the cumulative gain o loss previously accumulated in the iInvestments revaluation
reserve is not reclassified 1o profit or loss, butis transferred to retained eamings.

3.17.2 Financial llabilities

n

All financial ksbifiies are measured subsequently at amortised cost using the effective interest method or &t
FVTPL.

Financial kabiities at FVTPL

Financial labilities at FVTPL are stated at fair value, with any gains or losses arising on changes In fair value
recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss 1o the extent that they are not part of a designated
mmmmmnmmwwmmeuhmmmmnmmmm
any interast paid on the financial labiity

I-hwm.MWWM[:MMMHHWL,MmmMmmhﬂurairnhoniml
financial liability that is atiributable to changes in the credit risk of that liability Is recognised in statement of
other comprehensive income, unless the recognition of the effects of changes in the kabilty's credit risk in
other comprehensive income would create or enlarge an accounting mismatch statement of in profit of loss.
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The remaining amounl of change in the fair value of liabdity is recognised in statement of profit or loss.
Changes In fair value attributable to a financial kability's credit risk that are recognized in statement of other
comprehensive incoma are nol subsequently reclassified to statement of profit or loss; instead, they are
transferred to retainad earnings upon derecognition of the financial liability,

Gains or losses on financial guarantea coniracts issued by the Company that ere designated by the Company
85 al FVTPL are recognised in profit or loss.

Financial Kabities measured subsequently at amontised cost

Financial Rabilties that are not designated as FUTPL, are measured subsequenily at amortised cost using the
effective interest mathod

The effective interest method is @ method of calculating the amertised cost of a financial lisbilty and of
allocating Inlerest expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rale that exactly
discounts estimated future cash payments (including all fees and points paid or recaived that form an integral
part of the eflective inlerest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through the expected fife
of the financial liabiity, or (where appropriate) a shorter period, to the amortised cost of a financial liability.

Derecognition of financial liabilities,

The Company derecognises financial liabfities when, and only when, the Company's obligations are
discharged, cancelled or have expired. The difference between the carrying amount of the financial Rability
derecognised and the consideration paid and payable is recognised in profit or loss.

Mon-financial assets

The carmrying amounts of the Company's non-financtal assets are reviewed at each reporting date to
determing whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such indication exists then the assat's
recoverable amount is estimated.

An impairment loss is recognized if the camying amount of an asset or its cash-generating unit exceeds
its recoverable amount. A cash-generating unit is the smallest identifiable asset group that generates
cash flows that largely are independent from other assets and groups Impairment losses are recognized
in the income and expenditure statement.

Impairment losses recognized in respect of cash-genersling unils are aliccated first to reduce the
camying amount of any goodwill allocated to the units and then to reduce the carrying amaount of the
other assets in tha wnit (group of units) on a pro-rata basis

The recaverable amount of an assel or cash-generating unil is the greater of its value in use and falr
valua less cost 1o sell. In assessing value-in-use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market! assessments of the tma value of
money and the risks specific to the asset.

An impairment loss recognized in the prior periods is assassed at each reporting date for any indications
that the loss has decreased or no longer exisis. An impairment loss ks reversed if there has boen a
change in the estimatas usad to determine the recoverable amount An impairment loss is reversed only
lo the extant thal the assel's carrying amount doBs nol excaed the camying amount that would have
been determined. net of depreciation or amortization, if no impairment loss had been recognized.
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318 Falr value measurement

Fair value is the price that would be received fo sell an asset or paid to transfer & lisbifity in an crdery
fransaction between markel participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement |s based
on the presumption that the transaction o sall the asset or transfer the liability takes place either

i} In the principal market for the asset or liability; or
ii} In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantagecus market for the asset or liability.

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company. The fair value of
an asset or a liability is measured using the assumpbions that market paricipants would use when
pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial assel takes into account a markel participant's ability to
generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and bast use or by selling it to ancther
market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best usa

The Company uses valuation tachnigues that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which
sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximizing the use of relevant observable inpuls and
minimizing the use of uncbservable inputs.

All assets and fiabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are
categorized within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is
significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1 - Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities;
Level 2 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurament is directly or indirectly observable; and

Level 3 - Valuation techniques for which the lowesl level input that is significant to the fair value
measuremant is uncbservable.

memmmmmwmhmmwulsmmalhirmenammmm
the Company delermines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-
assessing categorization (based on the lowest level inpul thal is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

The Company's Chief Financial Officer determines the policies and procedures for both recurring fair
value measuremant and for non-recurring measurement. Exlernal valuers may be involved for valuation
of significant assets and significant liabilites, For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company
determines classes of assets and labilities on the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the
asset or lability and the level of the fair value hierarchy, as explained above.

mwwmmmwmhmorﬁabﬂrhuantfairvalun.nuaptplanmhr
gratuity, under the gratuity schame.
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6.1

71

June 30, 2020 June 30, 2019

LONG TERM ADVANCES Mote Rupees
Advance against gratuity balance to employees 2,267,085 498,259
2,267,085 488,259

The above advances were given against employees' gratuity in accordance with Company's service rules
with repayment terms of maximum twenty four (24) months and carry no markup.

June 30, 2020 June 30, 2019

ADVANCES MNote Rupoes
Considered good
To employees - secured:
- Advance against gratuity - cument portion 4,547,592 2918277
- Advance as against salary/TADA - 256,266
Advance against projects - secured Ta 1.887.276,392 501.071.743
To suppliers - 695,000

1,891,923,984 504,841,286

This represents unutilized portion of an advance paid to service providers, in respect of following projects:

June 30, 2020 June 20, 2019
Rupoas
Advances to related parties:
PTCL-OFC KPK - 79612278
PTCL-OFC FATA - 140,000,000
PTML-ESD KharanWashuk - 58,250,000
PTML-NG-BSD Small Lot-P4 9,800,000 -
TELENOR-BSD Mohmand - 2,384 569
TELENOR-BSD Kohistan 331,087,248 -
TELENOR-NG- B5D Dadu 67,206,683 43,359,151
TELENOR-NG-BSD NHEMW Lot-2(NH 25865) B5,167,258 50,128,661
TELENOR-NG-BSD NHEMW Lot-3(NH 50870) 86,347,029 82,235,266
TELENOR-NG-BSD Hyderabad 112,423,036 -
TELENOR-NG-BSD Bahawalpur 257,780,779 -
TELENOR-NG-BSD Small Lot 53 16,942,374 »
TELENOR-NG-BSD Tharparker 479,003,772 .
TELENOR-NG-BSD Sanghar 117,633,831 -
TELENOR-NG-BSD Muzaffargarh 130,043,880 .
TELENOR-NG-BSD Small Lot IBA-1 6,049,105 -
Advances to other than related parties:
PMCL-BSD North Waziristan - 27.082.149
PMCL-BSD South Waziristan 18,019,269 18,019 269
PMCL-NG-BSD Bahawalnagar 3,322,227
PMCL-NG-BSD Rahimyarkhan 39,705,142
PMCL-NG-BSD Dera Ghazi Khan 98,205,509
PMCL-NG-BSD Khuram 18,448 149
1,887,276,392 501,071,743
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10.1

June 30, 2020 June 30, 2019

SHORT-TERM PREPAYMENTS Note e RUPGCS e
Rent . i
Insurance 1,721,258 1,706,805
Cthers 4,610,519 1,088,788
6,331,777 2,775,593
June 30, 2020 June 30, 2019
OTHER RECEIVABLES MNote ——— Rupacs
From Related Party
PTCL Mustung 9.1 281,929 919 261,929,919
PTCL OFC BP-05 &1 T87 860,677 TBT, 860,877
PTCL BB HTR 81 26,171,616 26,171,816
From Others 254676 54,660
1,096,216 888 1,098 016,872

Ague Analysis of other receivables from related parties

Name of  Amount Amount past dus
Related  not past
P di
”y “®  030Days 3160 Days %’ﬁ 91-365 Days Above 365 Days
PTCL = - - - - 281929919
PTCL . TBT.BE0.6TT
PTCL - 26,171,618
- - - - - 1,095962,212

These represent late delivery charges recognized on delayed impiementabion of projecis milestones.
Management believe that no expected credd losses ara required to recognize because these are secured
through performance bond, Further, # is maximum outstanding balance at any ftime during the year. The
receivables are secured with bank guarantees of Projects.

June 30, 2020 June 30, 2019
CASH AND BANK BALANCE HNote s RUPETS
Cash in hand 24,494 40,108
Cash at bank
- Deposit account - local curmency 101 2,877 897,060 3.713,319,544
2877921554 3,713,350.650

This carries mark-up al rate 6.10% to 12 % per annum (2019 4.25% to 11% per annum). The profif on
bank deposit is recaivable wilh reference to the daily balance in the bank account

1
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12

121

13

131

132

June 30, 2020 June 30, 2018

FUND BALANCE (RESTRICTED) Note wemes RUPGRS —eeermees

Balance al the beginning of the year 5,017,064,385 3,830,835,750

Grant recetvad during the year 4,830,000,000 6,345 .000,000

Profit on depasit account 111 258,360,152 150,862 877

Miscellaneous receipts | recevables 1.2 753.083 1.872 537 851
5,189,113.235 B.972.400,728

Grants transferred to.

~Defemed capital grant 12 18,085,490 40,160,764

=Income and axpenditure statement 4 444 257 081 7,755,025 410

-Experience adustment 1334 {10,317,726) (4.013.072)
4,452,024.845 7.795,173,102
5,754,152,775 5,017,064 385

Profit on bank deposit and other receipts are adjustable against fulure funding from MelT, Governmant of
Pakistan and accordingly they are included in the fund balance.

This includes amoun? of Rs.215,776 (2019 Rs. 1,871,029,167) agains! liquidated damages, recovered
from operators.

June 30, 2020 June 30, 2019
DEFERRED CAPITAL GRANT Note wnrrmes RUPEES oo
Ealance at beginning of the year 49 674 401 24 540,700
Transferred from fund balance (restricted) 11 18,085,490 40,160,764
Depreciation/amortization charged during the year 12.1 (19,589,048) {15,027.063)
Balance at end of tha year 48,170,645 49,674,401

As at the reporting dats, the Company has ulilized Rs.198.8 milllon (201%: Rs,180.72 million) out of grant
received for capital expenditure,

June 30, 2020 June 30, 2018

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES Hate 1 e —
Project subsidy payable 131 115,763,728 175,232,805
Technical auditor fee payable 102,741 102,741
Payable to suppliers 7,182,302 9 557,085
Rent payable 10,502,800 10,502,800
Acciued Kabilities 2,370,924 3.593.281
Payable to gratuity fund 13.2 16, 78T 416 5273812
Eamest money 101,010,000 181,545,000

253,729,909 385,807 415

This includes an amoun! of Rs. 102.40 million (2019: 80.71 million) payatie ta related parties.

June 30, 2020 June 30, 2019
wrmmmaes RUPEES coeacees

Payable to gratuity fund
The movamant in net liability is as follows:
Balance al beginning of the period saraez 7,079,152
Charge for the period 13,708,184 11,859,026
Remeasurarnent loss 10,317,726 4,013,072
Contribution (12,512,106} (17.677.638)
Balance at end of the year - Payable 16,787 416 5273612

7
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13.3

13.31

13.3.2

13.3.3

13.3.4

1335

The details of actuarial valuation camried by Nauman Associates as at 30 June, 2020 are as follows:

Note
Reconciliation of payabile to gratuity fund:
Present value of the defined benefit obligation 13.3.2
Fair value of the plan assets 13.3.3

Change in the present value of defined benefit obligation
Opening balance

Current service cost 13.33
Interest cost on defined benafit obligation 1333
Benefits paid

Actuarial gain / (loss)

Charge for the year is as follows:
Current service cost

Interest expense

Interest income on plan assats
Interest income - net

Remeasurement galn - net is as follows:
Actuarial {gain) / loss recognized
Return on plan assets excluding the interest income

Change in fair value of plan assets

Opening balance

Interest income

Contribution made directly to gratuity fund
Payments made on behall of the gratuity fund
Benefits paid

Retumn on plan assets, excluding interest income

Major categories of the plan assets as a percenlage of total plan assets are as follows:

Cash and olher deposits:
-Bank balance
-Percentage

June 30, 2020 June 30, 2018
e RUpEES
87,480,648 77,754 649
(70,702,232) (72.481,037)
16,787,416 5273612
77,754,640 63,580,017
13,850,638 12,024 992
9,812,419 6,037 268
(20,165,308) (6.414,680)
6,237,230 2517052
87,489,648 77.754,640
13,850,638 12,034 952
9,812,439 6,037,268
(9.954,893) (6.213,234)
(142,454) (175,968)
13,708,184 11,858,026
6,237,230 2 517,052
4,080,496 1,496,020
10,317,726 4,013,072
72,481,037 56,500,865
9,954 893 6,213,234
9,086,760 11,262 958
3,425,346 6,414 BBD
(20,165,308) {6,414 680)
(4,080.496) (1,496,020)
70,702,232 72,481,037
June 30, 2020 June 30, 2019
- Rupecs
70,702,232 72.481.037
100% 100%

1
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13.3.8

13.4

14.1

14.2

1421

The principal actuarial assumptions used were as follows:
Actuarial valuation of the plan was carried oul as at 30 June, 2020 by an independent valuer using projected unt
credil method, on following assumptions:

June 30, 2020 June 30, 2019
Discount rate used for interest Cost in PAL Charge 14.50% 10.00%
Discount rabe used for year end obligation 9.25% 14.50%
Salary increase used for yaar end cbligation 8.75% 13.50%
Salary Increase FY 2021 Onwarg B.75% 13.50%
Mexd salary is increased on 1=Jul-20 1-Jub13
Mortality rates SLIC 2001-2005 SLIC 2001-2005
Setback 1 year Setback 1 year
Withdrawal rates Aga-Basoed fige-Based
(per appendix) (per appandix)
Retirement assumption Age 60 Age 60
Estimated expenses to be charged to statement of income &
expenditure Financial Year Financial Year
2021 2020
s RUPOOS oo
Current service cost 13,888,116 13,850,638
Interest cost on defined benafit obligation 7,902,458 10,985,601
Intenest income on plan assats (6,928.307) (11.512 556)
14,862 267 13.333 683

Fora change of 100 basis paints in these assumptions, keeping other present value of defined benafi obigation as
at 30 June, 2020 would have been as follows:

June 30, 2020 June 30, 2019
Present value of obligation Present value of cbligation
1% Increase 1 % decrease 1% Increase 1 % decrease
s RUpRES—- - RUpEEE -
Discount rate 78,122,839 98,470,418 70,048,692 88,880,520
Salary increass rate 98,557,155 77,877,524 801, i1,
June 30, 2020 June 30. 2018
The average duration of the defined banefil 12 Years 11 Years
obligation is
Historlcal information 2020 2019 2018 2017
Rupees
Met staff retirement
beneft kabily —i678416 araéiz _ Toreise 3200150,
Experignce adjustment 10,317,726 4.013.072 4,206 951 (726.188)
June 30, 2020 June 30, 2019
CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS e RUPLOS e
Commitments
Subsidy grant commitments 18 10,168,293,254 10,322 964,910
Technical auditor's fee 17 95,457 812 30,047,082
Maonitoring auditors fee 9,545,293 -
Contingencies

During FY 2013-14, the Adddional Commissioner Infand Revenue (ACIR) raised a demand in respect of tax years
2008 to 2014, amounting to Rs. 3,939.571,807 by treating tha grant received from MolT as taxable income. afier
giving benefi! for the Company's Administrative and General expenses. The Company filed appeals against this
demand, with the Commissioner Inland Revenue Appeals [CIR(A)], for re-examining of facts for, ignoding the
provision of clause 50 of part of 2nd Schedule, limiting the scope of Charitabile purpose under section 2(11A) and
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1422

1423

15

15.1

15.2

ignoring the provisions of section 9, of Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 as well as limiting the admissibility of expense
by disallowing expenses for projects subsidy grant and projects technical auditors fee. CIR (A) set aside all the
orders and remanded back for admissibility of expenses not allowed and instructions that taxation should be mada
as is done on nommal business/profession

The Company filed appeals with the Appeliate Tribunal Inland Revenue (ATIR) agains! the ACIR's & CIR(A) refusal
to treat the Company funding from Govemment as Government Grants and its operations not of welfare
organizations. The dacision of the ATIR is pending,

Further, management believes that it i not chargeabls to tax as the objective of incorporation of the Company 18 to
purse and implement the objective of the telecom policy announched by Federal Govemnment (FG) to develop
communication natwark in unserved and underserved areas. for this purpose it intends to obiain tax exemption from
FG and is hopetul of successful outcome.

Ajgo, based upon the advice of its tax advisors, is confident of a favorable outcome of the above cases. Accordingly,
na provision in this regard has been recognized.

In respect of the Tax Year 2013, the Officer Inland Revenue (OIR) raised a demand of Rs.13%,511,568, under
section 161/205 of tha Income Tax Ordinance 2001, alleging shorl payment of withholding tax. On an appeal filed by
the Company, the CIR(A) set-aside the order on September 30, 2015 and directed the OIR to re-examine the matter,
which is panding.

There asre some Btigations filed against the USF, in which the Company is involved as proforma
defandant/respondent and has no direct financial impact even if cases are decided against USF. Further litigations
filed by Company or where Company is Petitioner/Appeilant, management is of the oginion that USF has good prima
facie cases and cases are likely to be decided in favor of Company and so no provision is made for these ltigations
in thesa financial statements.

June 30, 2020 June 30, 2018
ADMINISTRATIVE AND GENERAL EXPENSES Note Rupees
Salaries and benefits 15.1 281,893,291 244 160,554
Training & HR development 2,366,574 1,371.550
Legal and professional charges 22,358,480 1.244 650
Rent 31,508,400 29,588 800
Litititles and office supplies 2,543,253 2209 624
Communication charges 1,293,483 1,085,856
Entertainment 718,728 778,534
Traveling 11,666,274 20,528,196
Printing and stationery 1,748,646 1,545,754
Vehicle fuel expenses 10,174,291 9,450,500
Repairs and maintenance 5,204,257 1,567 354
Advertisament B,547 563 7.820,0094
Dapreciation 4 9,838,251 12.180.118
Amortization of intangible asset 5 9,750,795 2,846,945
Auditors’ remuneration 15.2 446,000 240,000
Insurance axpense 2,572,881 1,874,774
Bank charges 20,318 20,298

402851485 33857BTT

Salaries and benefits inciude Rs. 24,025,910 (2019: Rs.15,872,098) charged in respect of definad benefit scheme.

June 30, 2020 June 30, 2019

Rupees
Auditors’ remuneration:
Annual audit fee 200,000 125,000
Interim audit fes 100,000 60,000
Review of Code of Corporate Governanacs 50,000 55,000
Oul of pocket expense 35,000 -
Sales lax 61,000 -
445,000 240,000
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18

18.1

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The Company has exposure to the following risks from its use of financial instruments:

- Credit risk

- Liquidity risk and

= Market nisk
The Board of Directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Company's risk
management framework and developing and monitoring the Company's risk management policies.

The Company’s risk management policies are established to identify and analyze the risks faced by the
Company, to set appropriate risk limits and controls, and to monitor risks and adherence to limits. Risk
management policies and systems are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in markel conditions and the
Company's aclivities. The Board of Directors of the Company oversees how management monitors
compliance with the Company's risk management policies and procedures, and reviews the adequacy of
the risk management framework in relation to the risks faced by the Company.

Cradit risk

Credit risk is the risk which arises with the possibility thal one party to a finandial instrument will fail to
discharge its obligation and cause the other party to incur a financial loss. The Company attempts to
control credit risk by monitoring credit exposures, limiting transactions with specific counterparties and
continually assessing the creditworthiness of counterparties. The Company's credit risk is primarily
attributable to advances, deposits, interest accrued, other receivables and balance at bank.

The Company limits its exposure to credit risk by maintaining bank account only with counterparties that
have a credit rating of at least A1 and A. Considering the high credit rating, the credit risk in respect of
bank balance is considered to be low. The Company's other financial assets are not significant 1o its
operations, The carrying values of financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure at the
reporting date are as follows:

June 30, 2020 June 30, 2019
[Er— Rum‘ ——
Long term deposits 127,500 127,500
Long term advances 2,267,085 498,259
Advances 1,891,923,984 504 941 286
Interest accrued 133,093,896 85,152 640
Other receivables 1,0986,216,888 1,096,016,872
Bank balance 2,877,897,060 3.713.319.544

6.001,526.413 3.400.056,101
Ea—————————

|

The credit quality of financial assets, for which the counter party is a bank. can be assessed by reference
to external credit ratings as shown below.

June 30, 2020 June 30, 2019
Rupees
Rating
Bank name: Ratin
. Agency
Mational Bank of Pakistan AALIA-1+  JCR-VISIPACRA
Bank balance 2,8B77,897,060 3713319544
Interest accrued 133,093,826 85,152,640
10,990 3.798,472.184

The management believes that no expected credit loss allowance is required in respect of these financial
assets unless explicitly stated in the respective notes.

7
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18.2

183

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that an entity will encounter difficulty in meeting obligations associated with
financial liabdities. The Company's approach to managing Bguidly is 1o ensure. as far as possible, that it
will have sufficient liquidity to meet its kabilities when dus, under both nomnal and stressed condition,
without incurring any unacceptable loss or damage to the Company's reputation

The maturity profile of the Company's financial iabiities based on the contraciual amounts is as follows:
Carrying Contractual  Maturtyupto  Moturity over

amount cash flows 1 yoar u; m;;:‘
Rupees

June 30, 2020
Project subsidy payable 115,763,726 115,763,726 115,763,726 -
Technical auditor fee payabile 102,741 102,741 102,741 -
Payabile to suppliers 7,182,302 7,192,302 7,182,302 5
Accrued liabilities 2,370,824 2,370,924 2,370,924 .
Eamest money 101,010,000 101,010,000 101,010,000 -
Rent Payable 10,502,000 10,502,000 10,502,000
Payable to Gratuity fund 16,787 416 16,787 416 16,787,416

Em,m zn‘mpm mim!m -
June 30, 2019
Project subsidy payable 175,232,895 175,232,895 175,232,895 -
Technical auditor fee payable 102,741 102,741 102,741 -
Payable to supphers §.557.085 0.557,086 9,557,086 -
Accrued liabllities 3,503.281 3,583,281 3,593 281 -
Earnest money 181.545.000 181.545.000 181,545 000 -
Ren! Payabie 10,502,000 10,502,000 10.502.000
Payable to Gratuity fund 5273812 5273612 5273612

385806615 385.806.615 385,806,615 -

It is not expected that the cash flows included in the maturity analysis would occur significantly earlier or at
significantly different amounts.

Maricot rizsk

The risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes
In market prices, due to changes in market sentiments, speculative activities, supply and demand of
securities and liquidity in the market. Market risk comprises of three types of risk; currency risk, interast
rate risk and other price risk. The Company is not significantly exposed to market risk.

18.3.1 Currency risk

Currency risk is the risk that the value of financial asset or a liability will fluctuate due 1o a change in foreign
exchange rates. It arises mainly where receivables and payables exist due to transactions entered into
foraign currencies.

The Company is not exposed to cumency fisks &s it has no transaction in foreign currency.

18.3.2 Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk represents the risk that the fair value or future cash flow of a financial instrument will
fluctuate because of changes in market interest rate,

The Company has no significant long-term interest baaring financial asset and liabllity whose fair value or
future cash flows will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates.

Financial assels include Rs. 2,877,897,060 (2019: Rs. 3,713,319 544) which eam interest. Applicable
Interest rates for financial assets have been indicated in note 10.1.

As the interest rates on the Company's financial assets are fixed, there is no exposure to any fluctusation in
future cash flows.

Fair value sensitivity analysis for fized rate instruments
The Company does not hold any financial asset at fair value through profit and loss. Therefore a change in
interest rate al reporting date would not affect income and expanditure account of the Company.

1
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18.3.3 Other price risk

18.4

18.5

18.6

19

Price risk is the risk that the fair value or fulure cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because
of changes in market prices (other than those arising from interest rate risk or currency risk), whether
those changes are caused by factors specific to the individual financial instrument or its issuer, or factors
affecting all similar financial instruments traded in the market.

Al the year end the Company is not exposed to price risk since there are no financial instruments whose
fair value or future cash flows will luctuate because of changes in market prices.

Off-setting of financial assets and liabilities
The Company does not off-sel any of ils financial assets and financial liabilities.
Determination of fair values

Fair values of financial and nion-financial assets and liabilities are determined for measurement and/or
disclosure on the basis of accounting policies disclosed in the financial statements. As at the reporting
dale, camying value of the Company's financial assets and liabilities are reasonable approximation of their
fair value. Accordingly, no fair value information has been disclosed in these financial statements.

Capital risk management

The Board of Directors maonitors the Company's performance against target set on an annual basis. All of
the financing required by the Company, for its activities, is provided through Grant from MolT. The
cutstanding balance of the Grant is normally adequate for a year's operation. MolT remains committed to
met tha requirements of the company.

TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES WITH RELATED PARTIES

The Company is governed by the Ministry of Information Technology. Government of Pakistan (GoF).
Therefore, all departments and agencies controlied by the GoP (“State-controlled entities”) are related
parties of the Company. Other related parties include direclors, members, key management personnel,
USF Employees' Gratuity Fund and entities under common directorship. Remuneration to the chief
execulive, directors and execulives is disclosed in note 20 to these financial statements. Balances with
related parties are disclosed in note 7, 13 and 16 to the financial statements and significant transactions
with related parties are as follows:

June 30, 2020
Note s Rupees

June 30, 2019

State-controlled entities

- MolT- grant received during the year

Associate due to commeon directorship

Subsidy grant disbursement 16

4!393"!!10'000 ﬁ,m.om!mﬂ

- Pakistan Telecommunication Company Limited 599,894,680 377 427,300

- Pak Telecom Mobile Limited (Ufone) 1,322,100,387 3,176,159,452

- Pakistan Mobile Communication Limited-Jazz - 45,101,418

- Telanor Pakistan Private Limited-Telenor 3,063,415,965 -
4,985,411,032 3,598,688,170

USF Employees' Gratuity Fund g

Contributions paid by the Company 13 12,512,106 ___ 17677638

7
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20 REMUNERATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE, DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVES

Chief Executive Directors Executives
30-Jun-20  30-Jun-19  30-Jun-20  30-Jun-19 30-Jun-20 30-Jun-19
Rupees
Meeting fee - - 2,740,000 284,000 - -
Managerial remuneration 1,599,315 11,017,500 . - 83,751,751 64,377,779
Alliowances 1,129,426 8,112,433 . = 69,880,835 58395545
Bonus 4,407,000 1,300,000 - - 24,064,141 16,527,388

7135741 20420933 2,740,000 284000 177,696,727 138,305,112
Number of parsons 1 1 9 g 33 29

20.1 Allowances includes monetization allowance, amounting to Rs. 11,619,688 (2019: Rs. 11,761,250) provided in
lieu of the Company maintained car to the entitled employees. Further, the Chief Executive Officer is also entitled
to gratuity on leaving the Company.

20.2 The Directors of the Company were not paid any remuneration during the year except for the meeting fee.

21 NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES June 30, 2020 June 30, 2018
Employees at the year end (Number) 88 88
—_— —
Average employees during the year (Number) 88 88
— —_—

22 DATE OF AUTHORIZATION FOR ISSUE

?Tha?;ﬁnanc'rat statements were authorized for issue by the Board of Directors of the Company on
f ;

23  GENERAL

Figures in these financial statements have been rounded off to the nearest rupee unless otherwise stated.

e

F EXE OFFICER DIRECTOR

1
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